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EXPLANATORY NOTE
We are filing this General Form for Registration of Securities on Form 10-12G to register our common stock pursuant to
Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Once this registration statement is deemed effective, we will be subject to the requirements of Regulation 13A under the
Exchange Act, which will require us to file annual reports on Form 10-KSB or Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-QSB or
Form 10Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and we will be required to comply with all other obligations of the Exchange Act
applicable to issuers filing registration statements pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act.
Unless otherwise noted, references in this Registration Statement to “Desert Gateway, Inc.,” the “Company”, “we,” “our” or
“us” means Desert Gateway, Inc.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
There are statements in this registration statement that are not historical facts. These “forward-looking statements” can be
identified by use of terminology such as “believe,” “hope,” “may,” “anticipate,” “should,” “intend,” “plan,” “will,” “expect,”
“estimate,” “project,” “positioned,” “strategy” and similar expressions. You should be aware that these forward-looking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties that are beyond our control. For a discussion of these risks, you should read this entire
Registration Statement carefully, especially the risks discussed under “Risk Factors.” Although management believes that the
assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements included in this Registration Statement are reasonable, they do not
guarantee our fu ture performance and actual results could differ from those contemplated by these forward-looking statements.
The assumptions used for purposes of the forward-looking statements specified in the following information represent estimates of
future events and are subject to uncertainty as to possible changes in economic, legislative, industry, and other circumstances. As a
result, the identification and interpretation of data and other information and their use in developing and selecting assumptions from
and among reasonable alternatives require the exercise of judgment. To the extent that the assumed events do not occur, the
outcome may vary substantially from anticipated or projected results, and, accordingly, no opinion is expressed on the achievability
of those forward-looking statements. In the light of these risks and uncertainties, there can
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be no assurance that the results and events contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in this Registration
Statement will in fact transpire. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of their dates. We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.
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ITEM 1
(A)

BUSINESS

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

History
Organizational Background:
We were incorporated February 8, 2008 as a subsidiary of American Merchant Data Services, Inc. Our former parent
company, American Merchant Data Services, Inc. (American Merchant) was originally incorporated on January 27, 2000 in Florida
as Boats.com, Inc. On September 25, 2002 Boats.com, Inc. changed its name to American Merchant Data Services, Inc. and
American Merchant later re-domiciled to Oklahoma in October, 2007.
During the fiscal period ended February 29, 2008, we consummated a reorganization which we refer to collectively as the
“2008 Reorganization”. Desert Gateway, Inc. (“Company”) was essentially spun-off of American Merchant pursuant to Section
1081(a) of the Oklahoma General Corporation Law, as a tax-free reorganization. Under the 2008 Reorganization all American
Merchant shareholders became shareholders of Desert Gateway, Inc. (“Desert Gateway”) in the same proportion. As a result of the
2008 Reorganization, each share of outstanding common stock of the American Merchant received one share of common stock of
Desert Gateway with the same rights, privileges, and preferences, including as to liquidation. In conjunction with the 2008
Reorganization, American Merchant concluded a downstream merger into a second subsidiary. All of American Merchant’s
operating assets, liabilities and t ax attributes (including accumulated losses and net operating losses) carried forward to the second
subsidiary. American Merchant’s second subsidiary is not a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, American Merchant is not
considered a predecessor company for accounting or legal purposes of Desert Gateway. Following the Reorganization we redomiciled to Delaware. Since 2004 and prior to consummation of the domiciliary merger in 2008, neither American Merchant nor
Desert Gateway had any existing operations.
We are authorized to issue an aggregate amount of one hundred twenty million (120,000,000) shares of stock, of which one
hundred million (100,000,000) shares are designated as common stock with a $0.0001 par value, and twenty million (20,000,000)
shares are designated as preferred stock with a $0.0001 par value. Each shareholder of the common stock shall be entitled to one
vote for each share of common stock held.
To date and as of the date hereof, the Company can be defined as a "shell" company, an entity which is generally
described as having no or nominal operations and with no or nominal assets or assets consisting solely of cash and cash
equivalents. As a shell company, our sole purpose at this time is to locate and consummate a merger or acquisition with a private
entity.
Our common stock is currently traded on the Pink Sheets under our former parent symbol of AMDS.
(B)

CURRENT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
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The Company is voluntarily filing this registration statement in order to make information concerning itself more readily
available to the public. Management believes that being a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (the
“Exchange Act”), could provide a prospective merger or acquisition candidate with additional information concerning the
Company. Management also believes that this could possibly make the Company more attractive to an operating business as a
potential merger or acquisition candidate. As a result of filing this registration statement, the Company becomes obligated to file
with the SEC certain interim and periodic reports, including an annual report containing audited financial statements. The Company
anticipates that it will continue to file such reports, notwithstanding the fact that, in the future, it may not otherwise be required to
file such reports based on the crite ria set forth under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act.
Any target acquisition or merger candidate will become subject to the same reporting requirements as the Company
following finalization of an acquisition or merger. Thus, in the event the Company successfully completes the acquisition of or
merger with an operating business, that business must provide audited financial statements for at least the two most recent fiscal
years or, in the event it has been in business for less than two years, audited financial statements will be required from the period of
inception. This could limit the Company's potential target business opportunities due to the fact that many private businesses either
do not have audited financial statements or are unable to produce audited statements without undo time and expense.
Management plans to investigate, research and, if justified, potentially acquire or merge with, one or more businesses or
business opportunities. The Company has no commitment or arrangement, written or oral, to participate in any business
opportunity and management cannot predict the nature of any potential business it may ultimately consider. Management will have
broad discretion in its search for and negotiations with any potential business or business opportunity.
Sources of Business Opportunities
Management intends to use various resources in its search for potential business opportunities including, but not limited
to, the Company's officers and directors, consultants, special advisors, securities broker-dealers, venture capitalists, members of the
financial community and others who may present management with unsolicited proposals. Because of its lack of capital, the
Company may not be able to retain, on a fee basis, professional firms specializing in business acquisitions and reorganizations.
Rather, it will most likely have to rely on outside sources, not otherwise associated with the Company that will accept their
compensation only after the Company has finalized a successful acquisition or merger. To date, the Company has not engaged or
entered into any discussion, agreement or understanding with a particular consultant regarding its search for business opportunities.
Presently, no final decision has been made nor is mana gement in a position to identify any future prospective consultants.
If the Company elects to engage an independent consultant, it will look only to consultants that have experience in
working with small companies in search of an appropriate
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business opportunity. Also, the consultant must have experience in locating viable merger and/or acquisition candidates and have a
proven track record of finalizing such business consolidations. Further, the Company would prefer to engage a consultant that will
provide services for only nominal up-front consideration and is willing to be fully compensated only at the close of a business
consolidation.
The Company does not intend to limit its search to any specific kind of industry or business. The Company may
investigate and ultimately acquire a venture that is in its preliminary or development stage, is already in operation, or in various
stages of its corporate existence and development. Management cannot predict at this time the status or nature of any venture in
which the Company may participate. A potential venture might need additional capital or merely desire to have its shares publicly
traded. The most likely scenario for a possible business arrangement would involve the acquisition of or merger with an operating
business that does not need additional capital, but which merely desires to establish a public trading market for its shares.
Management believes that the Company could provide a potential public vehicle for a private entity interested in becoming publicly
held without the time and expense typically associated with an initial public offering.
Evaluation
Once the Company identifies a particular entity as a potential acquisition or merger candidate, management will seek to
determine whether acquisition or merger is warranted, or whether further investigation is necessary. Such determination will
generally be based on management's knowledge and experience, or with the assistance of outside advisors and consultants
evaluating the preliminary information available to them. Management may elect to engage outside independent consultants to
perform preliminary analysis of potential business opportunities. However, because of its lack of capital, the Company may not
have the necessary funds for a complete and exhaustive investigation of any particular opportunity.
In evaluating potential business opportunities, management will consider, to the extent relevant to the specific situation,
several factors including:
●

potential benefits to the Company and stockholders;

●

working capital;

●

financial requirements and availability of additional financing;

●

history of operation, if any;

●

nature of present and expected competition;

●

quality and experience of management;

●

need for further research, development or exploration;
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●

potential for growth and expansion;

●

potential for profits; and

●

other factors deemed relevant to the specific opportunity.

Because the Company has not yet located or identified any specific business opportunity, there are certain unidentified
risks that cannot be adequately expressed prior to identifying a specific target. There can be no assurance following consummation
of any acquisition or merger that the business venture will develop into a going concern or, if the business is already operating, that
it will continue to operate successfully. Many potential business opportunities available to the Company may involve a new and
untested technology, product, process or market strategy, which may not ultimately prove successful.
Form of Potential Acquisition or Merger
The Company cannot predict the manner in which it might participate in a particular prospective business opportunity.
Each separate potential opportunity will be reviewed and, upon the basis of that review, a suitable legal structure or method of
participation will be chosen. The particular manner in which the Company participates in a specific opportunity will depend upon
the nature of its business, the respective needs and desires of the Company and the opportunity’s management, and the relative
negotiating strength of the parties involved. Actual participation in a business venture may take the form of an asset purchase,
lease, joint venture, license, partnership, stock purchase, reorganization, merger or other form of consolidation. The Company may
act directly or indirectly through an interest in a partnership, corporation, or other form of organization, however, it presently does
not intend to participate in an opportunity t hrough the purchase of a minority stock position.
Because it has no assets and a limited operating history, in the event the Company successfully acquires or merges with an
operating business, it is likely that current stockholders will experience substantial dilution. It is also probable that there will be a
change in control of the Company. The owners of a business that the Company acquires or mergers with will most likely effectively
control the Company following such transaction. Management has not established any guidelines as to the amount of control it will
offer to prospective target. Instead, management will attempt to negotiate the best possible agreement for the benefit of the
stockholders.
Presently, management does not intend to borrow funds to compensate any person, consultant, promoter or affiliate in
relation to the consummation of a potential merger or acquisition. However, if the Company engages any outside advisor or
consultant in its search for business opportunities, it may be necessary to attempt to raise additional funds. As of the date hereof,
the Company has not made any arrangements or definitive agreements to use outside advisors or consultants or to raise any capital.
In the event the Company does need to raise capital, most likely the only method available would be the private sale of securities.
These possible private sales would most likely have to be to persons known by the officers and directors or to venture capitalists
that would be willing to accept the risks associated with
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investing in a business with limited operations. Because the Company is a development stage company, it is unlikely that it could
make a public sale of securities or be able to borrow any significant sum from either a commercial or private lender. Management
will attempt to acquire funds on the best available terms. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to
obtain additional funding when and if needed, or that such funding, if available, can be obtained on reasonable and/or acceptable
terms. Although not presently anticipated, there is a remote possibility that the Company could sell securities to its management or
affiliates to raise funds.
There exists a possibility that the terms of any future acquisition or merger transaction might include the sale of shares
presently held by the Company’s officers and/or directors to parties affiliated with or designated by the potential target. Presently,
management has no plans to seek or actively negotiate such terms. However, if this situation does arise, management is obligated to
follow the Company's Articles of Incorporation and all applicable corporate laws in negotiating such an arrangement. Under this
scenario of a possible sale by officers and directors, it is unlikely that similar terms and conditions would be offered to all other
stockholders of the Company or that the stockholders would be given the opportunity to approve such a transaction.
In the event of a successful acquisition or merger, a finder's fee, in the form of cash or securities, may be paid to a person
or persons instrumental in facilitating the transaction. No criteria or limits have been established for the determination of an
appropriate finder's fee, although it is likely that any fee will be based upon negotiations by management, the business opportunity
and the finder. Management cannot at this time make an estimate as to the type or amount of a potential finder's fee that might be
paid. It is unlikely that a finder's fee will be paid to an affiliate of the Company because of the potential conflict of interest that
might result. However, if such a fee were paid to an affiliate, it would have to be in such a manner so as not to compromise the
affiliate’s possible fiduciary duty to the Company or violate the doctrine of corporate opportunity.
The Company believes that it is highly unlikely that it will acquire or merge with a business in which the Company's
management, affiliates or promoters have an ownership interest. Any possible related party transaction of this type would have to
be ratified by a disinterested Board and by the stockholders. Management does not anticipate an acquisition or merger with a
related entity. Further, as of the date hereof, no officer, director, affiliate or associate has had any preliminary contact or discussions
with any specific business opportunity, nor are there any present plans, proposals, arrangements or understandings regarding the
possibility of an acquisition or merger with any specific business opportunity.
It is anticipated that any securities issued in any such reorganization would be issued in reliance upon exemption from
registration under applicable federal and state securities laws. It is anticipated that it will also be a method of taking a private
company public known as a "back door" 1934 Act registration procedure.
While the actual terms of a transaction to which the Company may be a party cannot be predicted, it may be expected that
the parties to the business transaction will find it desirable to
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avoid the creation of a taxable event and thereby structure the acquisition as a so-called "tax-free" reorganization under Sections
368(a)(1) or 351 of the Internal Revenue Code.
We will participate in a business opportunity only after the negotiation and execution of appropriate written agreements.
Although the terms of such agreements cannot be predicted, generally such agreements will require some specific representations
and warranties by all of the parties thereto, will specify certain events of default, will detail the terms of closing and the conditions
which must be satisfied by each of the parties prior to and after such closing, will outline the manner of bearing costs, including
costs associated with the Company's attorneys and accountants, will set forth remedies on default and will include miscellaneous
other terms.
Our present intent is that we will not acquire or merge with any entity which cannot provide independent audited financial
statements at the time of closing of the proposed transaction and supply other information that is normally disclosed in filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. We are subject to all of the reporting requirements included in the 1934 Act. These rules
are intended to protect investors by deterring fraud and abuse in the securities markets through the use of shell companies. Included
in these requirements is the affirmative duty of the Company to file independent audited financial statements as part of its Form 8K to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission upon consummation of a merger or acquisition, as well as the
Company's audited financial statements included in its annual report on Form 10-KSB. In addition, in the filing of the Form 8-K
that we file to report an event that causes u s to cease being a shell company, we are required to include that information that is
normally reported by a company in its original Form 10 or Form 10-SB.
(C)

ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS COMBINATION

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards "SFAS" No.
141, "Business Combinations" and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." SFAS No. 141 requires business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and broadens the criteria
for recording intangible assets separate from goodwill. Recorded goodwill and intangibles will be evaluated against these new
criteria and may result in certain intangibles being subsumed into goodwill, or alternatively, amounts initially recorded as goodwill
may be separately identified and recognized apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires the use of a non-amortization approach to
account for purchased goodwill and certain intangibles. Under a non-amortization approach, goodwill and certain intangibles is
more than its fair value. Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition costs of the acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired. The Company is required to test goodwill and intangible assets that are determined to have an indefinite life for
impairments at least annually. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 require the completion of an annual impairment test with any
impairment recognized in current earnings. The provisions of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 may be applicable to any business
combination that we may enter into in the future.
(D)

INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940
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Although we will be subject to regulation under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the 1934 Act, our
management believes that we will not be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940 insofar as the Company
will not be engaged in the business of investing or trading in securities. In the event we engage in business combinations that result
in the Company holding passive investment interests in a number of entities, we could be subject to regulation under the Investment
Company Act of 1940. In such event, we would be required to register as an investment company and could be expected to incur
significant registration and compliance costs. We have obtained no formal determination from the Securities and Exchange
Commission as to the status of the Company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and, consequently, any violation of such
Act would subject the Company to material adv erse consequences.
(E)

EMPLOYEES

Robert Wilson currently devotes time to the Company’s business on an as needed basis. Management expects to use
consultants, attorneys and accountants as necessary, and does not anticipate a need to engage any full-time employees so long as the
Company is seeking and evaluating business opportunities. The need for employees and their availability will be addressed in
connection with the decision whether or not to acquire or participate in specific business opportunities.
(F)

FACILITIES

The Company currently has no facilities. We have a mailing address of 414 SE Washington Blvd, # 102, Bartlesville,
OK, 74006. It is contemplated that at such future time as the Company acquires or merges with an operating business, the Company
will secure commercial office space from which it will conduct its business. However, until such time as the Company completes
an acquisition or merger, the type of business in which the Company will be engaged and the type of office and other facilities that
will be required is unknown. The Company has no current plans to secure such commercial office space.
(G)

INDUSTRY SEGMENT

No information is presented regarding industry segments. The Company is presently a development stage company
seeking a potential acquisition of or merger with a yet to be identified business opportunity. Reference is made to the statements of
income included herein in response to Item 13 of this Form 10 for a report of the Company's operating history for the past two
fiscal years.
(H)

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Management anticipates that prior to consummating any acquisition or merger, the Company, if required by relevant state
laws and regulations, will seek to have the transaction ratified by stockholders in the appropriate manner. Certain types of
transactions may be entered into solely by Board of Directors approval without stockholder ratification. Under Delaware law,
certain actions that would routinely be taken at a meeting of stockholders, may be taken by
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written consent of stockholders having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take the
action at a meeting of stockholders. Thus, if stockholders holding a majority of the outstanding shares decide by written consent to
consummate an acquisition or a merger, minority stockholders would not be given the opportunity to vote on the issue. If
stockholder approval is required, the Board will have discretion to consummate the transaction by written consent if it is
determined to be in the Company’s best interest to do so. Regardless of whether an acquisition or merger is ratified by Board action
alone, by written consent or by holding a stockholders' meeting, the Company will provide to its stockholders complete disclosure
documentation concerning the potential target including requisite financial statements. This information will be disseminated by
proxy statement in the event a stockh olders' meeting is held, or by an information statement if the action is taken by written
consent.
Under Delaware corporate laws, the Company’s stockholders may be entitled to assert dissenters’ rights in the event of a
merger of acquisition. Stockholders will be entitled to dissent from and obtain payment of the fair value of their shares in the event
of consummation of a plan of merger to which the Company is a party, if approval by the stockholders is required under applicable
Delaware law. Also, stockholders will be entitled to dissenters’ rights if the Company enters into a share exchange if the
Company’s shares are to be acquired. A stockholder entitled to assert dissenter’s rights and obtain the fair value for their shares,
may not challenge the corporate action creating this entitlement, unless the action is unlawful or fraudulent with respect to the
stockholder or the Company. A dissenting stockholder shall refrain from voting their shares in approval of the corporate action. If
the proposed action is approved by the required vote of stockholders, the Company must give notice to all stockholders who
delivered to the Company their written notice of dissent.
(I)

COMPETITION

Because no potential acquisition or merger candidate has been identified, the Company is unable to evaluate the type and
extent of its likely competition. The Company is aware that there are several other public companies with only nominal assets that
are also searching for operating businesses and other business opportunities as potential acquisition or merger candidates. The
Company will be in direct competition with these other public companies in its search and, due to the Company's lack of funds, it
may be difficult to successfully compete with these other companies.
(J)

REPORTS TO SECURITY HOLDERS
(1) The Company is not required to deliver an annual report to security holders and at this time does not anticipate the
distribution of such a report.
(2) The Company will file reports with the SEC. The Company will be a reporting company and will comply with the
requirements of the Exchange Act.
(3) The public may read and copy any materials the Company files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450
Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling
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the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Additionally, the SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, which can be found at
http://www.sec.gov.
ITEM 1A

RISK FACTORS

INVESTING IN OUR COMMON STOCK INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING RISKS
ACTUALLY MATERIALIZES, OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS WOULD
SUFFER. YOU SHOULD READ THE SECTION ENTITLED “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS” IMMEDIATELY
FOLLOWING THESE RISK FACTORS FOR A DISCUSSION OF WHAT TYPES OF STATEMENTS ARE FORWARDLOOKING STATEMENTS, AS WELL AS THE SIGNIFICANCE OF SUCH STATEMENTS IN THE CONTEXT OF THIS
PROSPECTUS.
Our business is subject to numerous risk factors, including the following:
1.

We have had no operating history since inception nor any revenues or earnings from operations and we are insolvent.

We have no assets or financial resources. We will, in all likelihood, sustain operating expenses without corresponding
revenues, at least until the consummation of a business combination. This may result in us incurring a net operating loss that will
increase continuously until we can consummate a business combination with a profitable business opportunity. There is no
assurance that we can identify such a business opportunity and consummate such a business combination.
Our auditor's going concern opinion and the notation in the financial statements indicate that we do not have significant
cash or other material assets and that we are relying on advances from stockholders, officers and directors to meet our limited
operating expenses. We are insolvent in that we are unable to pay our debts in the ordinary course of business as they become due.
2.

Our proposed plan of operation is speculative.

The success of our proposed plan of operation will depend to a great extent on the operations, financial condition and
management of the identified business opportunity. While management intends to seek business combination(s) with entities having
established operating histories, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in locating candidates meeting such criteria. In
the event we complete a business combination, of which there can be no assurance, the success of our operations may be dependent
upon management of the successor firm or venture partner firm and numerous other factors beyond our control.
3.

We face intense competition for business opportunities and combinations.
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We are and will continue to be an insignificant participant in the business of seeking mergers with, joint ventures with,
and acquisitions of, small private and public entities. A large number of established and well-financed entities, including venture
capital firms, are active in mergers and acquisitions of companies that may be our desirable target candidates. Nearly all such
entities have significantly greater financial resources, technical expertise and managerial capabilities than we have and,
consequently, we will be at a competitive disadvantage in identifying possible business opportunities and successfully completing a
business combination. Moreover, we will also compete in seeking merger or acquisition candidates with numerous other small
public companies.
4.

We have no agreements for a business combination or other transaction and have established no standards for a business
combination.

We have no arrangement, agreement or understanding with respect to engaging in a merger with, joint venture with, or
acquisition of, a private or public entity. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in identifying and evaluating suitable
business opportunities or in concluding a business combination. Management has not identified any particular industry or specific
business within an industry for our evaluation. There is no assurance that we will be able to negotiate a business combination on
terms favorable to us. We have not established a specific length of operating history or a specified level of earnings, assets, net
worth or other criteria which we will require a target business opportunity to have achieved, and without which we would not
consider a business combination in any form with such business opportunity. Accordingly, we may enter into a business
combination with a business opportunity having no signi ficant operating history, losses, limited potential or no potential for
earnings, limited assets, negative net worth or other negative characteristics.
5.

Our success is dependent upon management that has other full time employment, has limited experience and will only
devote limited part time working for the Company, and this makes our future even more uncertain.

Robert Wilson, our sole director and officer, has agreed to provide services on an as needed basis for a term of 24 months.
We have not obtained key man life insurance. Notwithstanding the combined limited experience and time commitment of
management, loss of the services would adversely affect development of our business and its likelihood of continuing operations.
6.

The reporting requirements under federal securities law may delay or prevent us from making certain acquisitions.

Sections 13 and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "1934 Act"), require companies subject
thereto to provide certain information about significant acquisitions, including certified financial statements for the company
acquired, covering one, two, or three years, depending on the relative size of the acquisition. The time and additional costs that may
be incurred by some target entities to prepare such statements may significantly delay or essentially preclude consummation of an
otherwise desirable acquisition by the Company. Acquisition prospects that do not have or are unable to obtain the required audited
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statements may not be appropriate for acquisition so long as the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act are applicable.
In addition to the audited financial statements, in the filing of the Form 8-K that we file to report an event that causes us to
cease being a shell company, we will be required to include that information that is normally reported by a company in a Form 10
or Form 10-SB. The time and additional costs that may be incurred by some target entities to prepare and disclose such information
may significantly delay or essentially preclude consummation of an otherwise desirable acquisition by the Company.
7.

The Investment Company Act of 1940 creates a situation wherein we would be required to register and could be required
to incur substantial additional costs and expenses.

Although we will be subject to regulation under the 1934 Act, management believes the Company will not be subject to
regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940, insofar as we will not be engaged in the business of investing or trading in
securities. In the event we engage in a business combination that results in us holding passive investment interests in a number of
entities, we could be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940. In such event, we would be required to
register as an investment company and could be expected to incur significant registration and compliance costs. We have obtained
no formal determination from the Securities and Exchange Commission as to the status of our Company under the Investment
Company Act of 1940 and, consequently, any violation of such Act would subject us to material adverse consequences.
8.

A merger, acquisition, or joint venture would most likely be exclusive, resulting in a lack of diversification.

Management anticipates that it may be able to participate in only one potential business venture because a business
partner might require exclusivity. This lack of diversification should be considered a substantial risk to our shareholders because it
will not permit us to offset potential losses from one venture against gains from another.
9.

Our present management most likely will not remain after we complete a business combination.

A business combination involving the issuance of our Common Stock will, in all likelihood, result in shareholders of a
private company obtaining a controlling interest in us. Any such business combination may require our management to sell or
transfer all, or a portion of the Company's Common Stock held by them and/or resign as members of the Board of Directors. The
resulting change in our control could result in removal of one or more present officers and directors and a corresponding reduction
in or elimination of their participation in our future affairs.
10.

At the time we do any business combination, each shareholder will most likely hold a substantially lesser percentage
ownership in the Company.
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Our current primary plan of operation is based upon a business combination with a private concern that, in all likelihood,
would result in the Company issuing securities to shareholders of any such private company. The issuance of our previously
authorized and unissued Common Stock would result in reduction in the percentage of shares owned by our present and prospective
shareholders and may result in a change in our control or in our management.
11.

As a shell company, we face substantial additional adverse business and legal consequences.

We may enter into a business combination with an entity that desires to establish a public trading market for its shares. A
business opportunity may attempt to avoid what it deems to be adverse consequences of undertaking its own public offering by
seeking a business combination with us. Such consequences may include, but are not limited to, time delays of the registration
process, significant expenses to be incurred in such an offering, loss of voting control to public shareholders and the inability or
unwillingness to comply with various federal and state laws enacted for the protection of investors.
On June 29, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission adopted final rules amending the Form S-8 and the Form 8-K
for shell companies like us. The amendments expand the definition of a shell company to be broader than a company with no or
nominal operations/assets or assets consisting of cash and cash equivalents. The amendments prohibit the use of a Form S-8 (a form
used by a corporation to register securities issued to an employee, director, officer, consultant or advisor), under certain
circumstances, and revise the Form 8-K to require a shell company to include current Form 10 or Form 10-SB information,
including audited financial statements, in the filing on Form 8-K that the shell company files to report the acquisition of the
business opportunity. This initial filing must be made within four days of the acquisition. The Form 8-K filing may be reviewed by
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the prospects of certain discl osures or review or the lack of the ability to issue
securities using a Form S-8 may delay the consummation of a business combination because of the target entity's inability to
comply with various federal and state laws enacted for the protection of investors or the unwillingness to assume the significant
costs of compliance.
12.

The requirement of audited financial statements may disqualify business opportunities.

Our management believes that any potential business opportunity must provide audited financial statements for review,
for the protection of all parties to the business combination. One or more attractive business opportunities may choose to forego the
possibility of a business combination with us, rather than incur the expenses associated with preparing audited financial statements.
13.

Our sole officer and director and the principal shareholders and will be able to approve all corporate actions without
minority shareholder consent and will control our Company.
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Our principal shareholder, IACE Investments One, Inc. currently owns approximately 51.08% of our Common Stock. It
will have significant influence over all matters requiring approval by our shareholders, but not requiring the approval of the
minority shareholders.
14.

Our Common Stock may never be widely traded and you may have no ability to sell the shares.

While our stock has a trading symbol to facilitate trades on the OTC "Pink Sheets," there is no significant public trading
market for our shares of Common Stock. And there can be no assurance that a liquid market for our Common Stock will be
established or that, if established, a market will be sustained. Therefore, if you purchase our Common Stock you may be unable to
sell the shares. Accordingly, you should be able to bear the financial risk of losing your entire investment.
Only market makers can apply to quote securities. Market makers who desire to initiate quotations in the OTC Bulletin
Board system must complete an application (Form 211) (unless an exemption is applicable) and by doing so, will have to represent
that it has satisfied all applicable requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-11 and the filing and
information requirements promulgated under the National Association of Securities Dealers' ("NASD") Bylaws. The OTC Bulletin
Board will not charge us a fee for being quoted on the service. NASD rules prohibit market makers from accepting any
remuneration in return for quoting issuers' securities on the OTC Bulletin Board or any similar medium. The NASD Regulation,
Inc. will review the market maker's application (unless an exemption is applicable) and if cleared, it cannot be assumed by any
investor that any federal, state or self-regulatory requirements other th an certain NASD rules and Rule 15c2-11 have been
considered by the NASD Regulation, Inc. Furthermore, the clearance should not be construed by any investor as indicating that the
NASD Regulation, Inc., the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any state securities commission has passed upon the accuracy
or adequacy of the documents contained in the submission.
The OTC Bulletin Board is a market maker or dealer-driven system offering quotation and trading reporting capabilities, a
regulated quotation service that displays real-time quotes, last-sale prices, and volume information in OTC equity securities. The
OTC Bulletin Board securities are not listed and traded on the floor of an organized national or regional stock exchange. Instead,
OTC Bulletin Board securities transactions are conducted through a telephone and computer network connecting market makers or
dealers in stocks. There is no assurance that our Common Stock will be accepted for listing on the OTC Bulletin Board or on any
trading system other than the OTC "Pink Sheets."
15.

If our Common Stock does not meet blue sky resale requirements, certain shareholders may be unable to resell our
Common Stock.

The resale of Common Stock must meet the blue sky resale requirements in the states in which the proposed purchasers
reside. If we are unable to qualify the Common Stock and there is no exemption from qualification in certain states, the holders of
the Common Stock or the purchasers of the Common Stock may be unable to sell them.
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16.

Our shareholders may face significant restrictions on the resale of our Common Stock due to state "blue sky" laws or if we
conduct an offering of our common stock as a "blank check" company under Rule 419 adopted by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

There are state regulations that may adversely affect the transferability of our Common Stock. We have not registered our
Common Stock for resale under the securities or "blue sky" laws of any state. We may seek qualification or advise our shareholders
of the availability of an exemption. But we are under no obligation to register or qualify our Common Stock in any state or to
advise the shareholders of any exemptions.
Current shareholders, and persons who desire to purchase the Common Stock in any trading market that may develop in
the future, should be aware that there might be significant state restrictions upon the ability of new investors to purchase the
Common Stock.
Blue sky laws, regulations, orders, or interpretations place limitations on offerings or sales of securities by "blank check"
companies or in "blind-pool" offerings, or if such securities represent "cheap stock" previously issued to promoters or others.
These limitations typically provide, in the form of one or more of the following limitations, that such securities are:
(a) Not eligible for sale under exemption provisions permitting sales without registration to accredited investors or qualified
purchasers;
(b) Not eligible for the transaction exemption from registration for non-issuer transactions by a registered broker-dealer;
(c) Not eligible for registration under the simplified small corporate offering registration (SCOR) form available in many
states;
(d) Not eligible for the "solicitations of interest" exception to securities registration requirements available in many states;
(e) Not permitted to be registered or exempted from registration, and thus not permitted to be sold in the state under any
circumstances.
Virtually all 50 states have adopted one or more of these limitations, or other limitations or restrictions affecting the sale
or resale of stock of blank check companies or securities sold in "blind pool" offerings or "cheap stock" issued to promoters or
others. Specific limitations on such offerings have been adopted in:
Alaska
Arkansas
California
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Idaho

Nevada
New Mexico
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island

Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Washington
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Indiana
Nebraska

South Carolina
South Dakota

Any secondary trading market which may develop, may only be conducted in those jurisdictions where an applicable
exemption is available or where the shares have been registered.
The Securities and Exchange Commission have adopted a rule (Rule 419) which defines a blank-check company as (i) a
development stage company, that is (ii) offering penny stock, as defined by Rule 3a51-1, and (iii) that has no specific business plan
or purpose or has indicated that its business plan is to engage in a merger or acquisition with an unidentified company or
companies. Certain jurisdictions may have definitions that are more restrictive than Rule 419. We have been informed that the
Securities and Exchange Commission has cautioned that "it will scrutinize registered offerings for attempts to create the appearance
that the registrant has a specific business plan, in an effort to avoid the application of Rule 419." Provisions of Rule 419 apply to
every registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, relating to an offering by a blank-check company.
Should we conduct an offering of our securities, before we complete a business combination with an operating company,
the Company would be considered a blank check company within the meaning of Rule 419 and any sales or resales of the stock
issued in the offering would require a registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in an offering subject to Rule 419,
unless there exists a transaction or security exemption for such sale under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Current
shareholders and persons who desire to purchase our Common Stock in any trading market that may develop in the future, should
be aware that we are under no obligation to register the shares on behalf of our shareholders under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.
The Company's officers, directors and majority shareholders have expressed their intentions not to engage in any
transactions with respect to the Company's Common Stock except in connection with or following a business combination resulting
in us no longer being defined as a blank check issuer. Any transactions in our Common Stock by said shareholders will require
compliance with the registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
17.

Our Common Stock may be subject to significant restriction on resale due to federal penny stock restrictions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted rules that regulate broker or dealer practices in connection with
transactions in penny stocks. Penny stocks generally are equity securities with a price of less than $5.00 (other than securities
registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on the Nasdaq system, provided that current price and volume
information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange system). The penny stock rules require a
broker or dealer, prior to a transaction in a pennystock not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure
document prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commission that provides information about penny stocks and the nature and
level of risks in the penny stock market. The broker or dealer also must provide
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the customer with bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker or dealer, and its salesperson in the
transaction, and monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer's account. The
penny stock rules also require that prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from such rules, the broker or dealer
must make a special written determination that a penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's
written agreement to the transaction.
These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in any secondary market for
our stock that becomes subject to the penny stock rules, and accordingly, shareholders of our Common Stock may find it difficult or
impossible to sell their securities.
18.

As common shares become eligible for sale, their sales could depress the market price of our stock.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our Common Stock in the public market following any merger, acquisition or
related transaction could harm the market price of our Common Stock. Moreover, as additional shares of our Common Stock
become available for resale in the public market pursuant to the registration of the sale of the shares, and otherwise, the supply of
our Common Stock may be offered from time to time in the open market for the shares of Common Stock. In general, a person
who has held restricted shares for a period of one year may, upon filing with the SEC a notification on Form 144, sell into the
market Common Stock in an amount equal to the greater of one percent of the outstanding shares or the average weekly number of
shares sold in the last four weeks prior to such sale. Such sales may be repeated once each three months, and any of the restricted
shares may be sold by a non-affiliate after they h ave been held two years.
19.

Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 20,000,000 shares of preferred Stock.

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock with designations,
rights and preferences determined from time to time by its Board of Directors. Accordingly, our Board of Directors is empowered,
without stockholder approval, to issue preferred stock with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights which could
adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of the common stock. In the event of issuance, the preferred stock
could be utilized, under certain circumstances, as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of the
Company. Although we have no present intention to issue any shares of or authorized preferred stock, we may do so in the future.
20.

Limited funds and lack of full-time management make it impracticable to conduct a complete and exhaustive investigation
and analysis of a business opportunity.

Our limited funds and the lack of full-time management will likely make it impracticable to conduct a complete and
exhaustive investigation and analysis of a business opportunity before we commit our capital or other resources to such
opportunity. Management
20

decisions, therefore, will likely be made without detailed feasibility studies, independent analysis, market surveys and the like
which, if we had more funds, would be desirable. We will be particularly dependent in making decisions upon information
provided by the promoter, owner, sponsor, or others associated with the business opportunity seeking our participation. A
significant portion of our available funds may be expended for investigative expenses and other expenses related to preliminary
aspects of completing an acquisition transaction, whether or not any business opportunity investigated is eventually acquired.
21.

Dependence upon outside advisors to supplement the business experience of our officers and directors.

To supplement the business experience of our officers and directors, we may be required to employ accountants, technical
experts, appraisers, attorneys, or other consultants or advisors. The selection of any such advisors will be made by our officers
without any input from shareholders. Furthermore, it is anticipated that such persons may be engaged on an “as needed” basis
without a continuing fiduciary or other obligation to the company. In the event management considers it necessary to hire outside
advisors, they may elect to hire persons who are affiliates, if they are able to provide the required services.
22.

There is a possibility that any acquisition of a business opportunity we make may be leveraged.

There is a possibility that any acquisition of a business opportunity we make may be leveraged, i.e., we may finance the
acquisition of the business opportunity by borrowing against the assets of the business opportunity to be acquired, or against the
projected future revenues or profits of the business opportunity. This could increase our exposure to losses. A business opportunity
acquired through a leveraged transaction is profitable only if it generates enough revenues to cover the related debt and expenses.
Failure to make payments on the debt incurred to purchase the business opportunity could result in the loss of a portion or all of the
assets acquired. There is no assurance that any business opportunity acquired through a leveraged transaction will generate
sufficient revenues to cover the related debt and expenses.
23.

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock.
We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying such dividends in the foreseeable

future.
ITEM 2

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation
The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto appearing
elsewhere in this Form 10.
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The Company is considered a development stage company with no assets and/or capital and no material operations or
income. Ongoing expenses, including the costs associated with the preparation and filing of this registration statement, have been
paid for by advances from a stockholder, which are evidenced on the Company’s financial statements as accounts payable-related
parties. It is anticipated that the Company will require only nominal capital to maintain its corporate viability. Additional necessary
funds will most likely be provided by the Company's officers and directors, although there is no agreement related to future funds
and there is no assurance such funds will be available. However, unless the Company is able to facilitate an acquisition of or
merger with an operating business or is able to obtain significant outside financing, there is substantial doubt about its ability to
continue as a goin g concern.
Results of Operations
Inception (February 8, 2008 to February 29, 2008
No operating revenues were generated during the period of February 8, 2008 (Inception) to February 29, 2008. We
incurred $51,990 in operating expenses. These expenses were accrued legal and audit fees of $45,000 incurred because of our
contemplated securities filing and state filing, director and transfer agent fees of approximately $6,000 arising from the 2008
reorganization.. We expect our sole director to continue to provide services in the future but have not made any arrangements for
compensation. To date, all material services have been provided by outside professionals.
These expenses resulted in a net loss for the period of $51,990 (less than $0.01 per share.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of February 29, 2008, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $51,990 and had no cash. Our expenses have
been paid by related parties. We currently owe approximately $6,000 to our sole director for funds expended on our behalf. We also
owe $45,000 and $930 in accrued professional fees and accounts payable, respectively. We must rely on our director to pay these
funds and continue to pay future expenses on our behalf. We do not have any plans to raise additional funding.
The Company does not have sufficient funds to continue its operating activities. Future operating activities are expected to be
funded by loans from major stockholders. . Because it has no cash reserves or source of revenues, the Company expects to
continue to rely on the stockholder to pay expenses until such time as it can successfully complete an acquisition of or merger with
an existing, operating company. There is no assurance that the Company will complete such an acquisition or merger or that the
stockholder will continue indefinitely to pay expenses.
In the opinion of management, inflation has not and will not have a material effect on the operations of the Company until
such time as the Company successfully completes an
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acquisition or merger. At that time, management will evaluate the possible effects of inflation on the Company related to it
business and operations following a successful acquisition or merger.
Plan of Operation
During the next 12 months, the Company will actively seek out and investigate possible business opportunities with the
intent to acquire or merge with one or more business ventures. The Company will not restrict its search to any specific business,
industry, or geographical location and it may participate in a business venture of virtually any kind or nature.
Because the Company lacks funds, it may be necessary for officers and directors to advance funds to the Company and to
accrue expenses until such time as a successful business consolidation can be accomplished. Management intends to hold expenses
to a minimum and to obtain services on a contingency basis when possible. Further, directors will defer any compensation until
such time as an acquisition or merger can be accomplished and will strive to have the business opportunity provide their
remuneration. However, if the Company engages outside advisors or consultants in its search for business opportunities, it may be
necessary to attempt to raise additional funds. As of the date hereof, the Company has not made any arrangements or definitive
agreements to use outside advisors or consultants or to raise any capital.
If the Company needs to raise capital, most likely the only method available would be the private sale of securities.
Because the Company is a development stage company, it is unlikely that it could make a public sale of securities or be able to
borrow any significant sum from either a commercial or private lender. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to
obtain additional funding when and if needed, or that such funding, if available, can be obtained on acceptable terms.
The Company does not intend to use any employees, with the possible exception of part-time clerical assistance on an asneeded basis. Outside advisors or consultants will be used only if they can be obtained for minimal cost or on a deferred payment
basis. Management is confident that it will be able to operate in this manner and to continue its search for business opportunities
during the next twelve months. Also, the Company does not anticipate making any other significant capital expenditures until it can
successfully complete an acquisition or merger.
The Company has accumulated approximately $52,000 of net operating loss carryforwards as of February 29, 2008. This
loss carry forward may be offset against future taxable income through the year 2029. The use of these losses to reduce future
income taxes will depend on the generation of sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the net operating loss
carryforwards. In the event of certain changes in control, there will be an annual limitation on the amount of net operating loss
carryforwards that can be used. No tax benefit has been reported in the financial statements for the period ended February 29, 2008.
Realization of our net deferred tax assets is dependent upon our generating sufficient taxable income in future years in appropriate
tax jurisdictions to realize any benefit from the reversal of temporary differences and from net operating loss, or NOL,
carryforwards. We have determined it more likely than not
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that these timing differences will not materialize and have provided a valuation allowance against substantially all of our net
deferred tax assets.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 141 (Revised 2007), Business
Combinations (“SFAS 141R”).SFAS 141R provides additional guidance on improving the relevance, representational faithfulness,
and comparability of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination
and its effects. This Statement applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests
in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This
Statement is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 160 on our financial statements.
ITEM 3

PROPERTIES
We have no properties and at this time have no agreements to acquire any properties.

We presently have a mailing address of 414 SE Washington Blvd., #102, Bartlesville, OK 74006. This mailing address is
provided to the Company by our president and it is anticipated that this arrangement will remain until such time as the Company
successfully consummates a merger or acquisition.
Management believes that this arrangement will meet the Company's needs for the foreseeable future.
ITEM 4

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of May 1,
2008 by (i) each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than 10 % of our outstanding common stock; (ii) each of our
officers and directors; and (iii) all of our directors and officers as a group. None of the current shareholders have received or will
receive any extra or special benefits that were not shared equally (pro-rata) by all holders of shares of our stock.

24

Name and Address of Beneficial
Owner
IACE Investments One, Inc. *
Robert Wilson

Amount of Common
Stock Beneficially
Owned

Percentage Ownership
of Common stock(1)

49,000,000

51.08 %

0

All Officers and Directors as a
Group (1 person)

0%

49,000,000

51.08 %

* IACE Investments One, Inc. is a Nevada Corporation owned by Ruth Shepley
ITEM 5

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS.

The following table provides information concerning our officers and directors. All directors hold office until the next
annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors have been elected and qualified.
NAME
Robert Wilson

AGE

POSITION

39

Sole Director

The above listed officers and directors will serve until the next annual meeting of the shareholders or until their death,
resignation, retirement, removal, or disqualification, or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. Vacancies in the
existing Board of Directors are filled by majority vote of the remaining Directors. Officers of the Company serve at the will of the
Board of Directors. There are no agreements or understandings for any officer or director to resign at the request of another person
and no officer or director is acting on behalf of or will act at the direction of any other person.
RESUMES
Mr. Wilson has served as President and Director of the Company since February 8, 2008. Prior to 2008 Mr. Wilson
worked in management at various casinos around the Atlantic City area including the Showboat Casino and the Bargota Casino.
Mr. Wilson has not served as an officer or director of any other company during the last five years.
OTHER OFFERINGS
Mr. Wilson currently has no other involvement with any other companies nor has he had any involvement with any other
companies in the past.
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ITEM 6

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Following is a table detailing payments made to the Company’s executive officers for the past two years.
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and
Principal Position
Robert Wilson, President,
Secretary/ Treasurer

Year
2008

Salary
5000

Stock
Awards
0

Bonus
0

Option
Awards
0

Change in
Pension
Value
And NonQualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings
0

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan
Compensation
0

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END
Option Awards
&n bsp;

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable
Name
Robert Wilson,
President, Secretary/
Treasurer

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards;
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unearned
Options (#)

Option
Exercise
Price

Option
Expiration
Date

0

0

0

0

All Other
Compensation
0

Stock Awards

Number
Of Shares
Of Units
Of Stock
That
Have Not
Vested (#)

Market
Value of
Shares
Or Units
Of Stock
That
Have Not
Vested

0

0

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards;
Number of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights That
Have Not
Vested

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards;
Market or
Payout
Value of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights That
Have Not
Vested

0

0

& nbsp;
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name
Robert Wilson

Fees Earned
Or Paid in
Cash
0

Stock
Awards
0

Option
Awards

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

0

0

Change in
Pension Value
And
Nonqualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings

0
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All Other
Compensation

Total

0

0

Total
0

We have no retirement, pension, profit-sharing, stock options or insurance programs or other similar programs for the
benefit of our employees.
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Director Compensation
Members of the Company’s Board of Directors do not receive compensation, as such, at this time.
The company is obligated to pay Robert Wilson, in his capacity as director, $5000.00 annually as base compensation
through December 31, 2009.
Stock Option Grants
As of the date of this Prospectus the Company has not granted any stock options.
ITEM 7

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

Employee Agreement
Robert Wilson has agreed to provide the necessary funds, without interest, for the Company to comply with the 1934 Act
provided that he is an officer and director of the Company when the obligation is incurred.
Other than as described above, there have bee no material transactions in the past two years or proposed transactions to
which the Company has been or proposed to be party in which any officer, director, nominee or officer or director, or security
holder of more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding securities is involved.
The Company has no promoters other than its executive officers and directors. There have been no transactions which
have benefited or will benefit its executive officers and directors either directly or indirectly.
ITEM 8

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
No litigation is pending or threatened by or against the Company.

ITEM 9

MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

We currently trade under the symbol of our former parent “AMDS" for trading on the Over-The-Counter "Pink sheets."
There is no active trading market for our Common Stock at
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present and, according to the best information available to management, there has been no trading activity for approximately three
years. The last known sale price for the stock was $.0007 and that sale took place June 04, 2008. There is no assurance that an
active trading market will ever develop or, if such a market does develop, that it will continue. The Company intends to request a
broker-dealer to make application to the NASD Regulation, Inc. to have the Company's securities traded on the OTC Bulletin
Board System.
The Securities and Exchange Commission adopted Rule 15g-9, which established the definition of a "penny stock," for
purposes relevant to the Company, as any equity security that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share or with an exercise
price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the
rules require: (i) that a broker or dealer approve a person's account for transactions in penny stocks; and (ii) the broker or dealer
receive from the investor a written agreement to the transaction, setting forth the identity and quantity of the penny stock to be
purchased. In order to approve a person's account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must (i) obtain financial
information and investment experience and objectives of the person; and (ii) make a reasonable determination that the transactions
in penny stocks are suitable fo r that person and that person has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be
capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny stocks. The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a
penny stock, a disclosure schedule prepared by the Commission relating to the penny stock market, which, in highlight form, (i)
sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination; and (ii) that the broker or dealer received a
signed, written agreement from the investor prior to the transaction. Disclosure also has to be made about the risks of investing in
penny stock in both public offering and in secondary trading, and about commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the
registered representative, current quotations for the securities, and the rights and remedies available to an investor in cases of fraud
in penny stock transactions. Finally, monthly statements have to be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held
in the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks.
For the initial listing in the NASDAQ SmallCap market, a company must have net tangible assets of $4 million or market
capitalization of $50 million or a net income (in the latest fiscal year or two of the last fiscal years) of $750,000, and a public float
of 1,000,000 shares with a market value of $5 million. The minimum bid price must be $4.00 and there must be 3 market makers.
In addition, there must be 300 shareholders holding 100 shares or more, and the company must have an operating history of at least
one year or a market capitalization of $50 million.
For continued listing in the NASDAQ SmallCap market, a company must have net tangible assets of $2 million or market
capitalization of $35 million or a net income (in the latest fiscal year or two of the last fiscal years) of $500,000, and a public float
of 500,000 shares with a market value of $1 million. The minimum bid price must be $1.00 and there must be 2 market makers. In
addition, there must be 300 shareholders holding 100 shares or more.
Our management intends to strongly consider undertaking a transaction with any merger or acquisition candidate that will
allow the Company's securities to be traded on
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NASDAQ or some other national exchange. However, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to identify a
NASDAQ qualified merger or acquisition candidate. Moreover, even if the Company is able after a successful merger or
acquisition to qualify for a listing on NASDAQ or some other national exchange, there can be no assurance that it will be able to
maintain the maintenance criteria necessary to continue such a listing. In such events, trading, if any, in the Company's securities,
might only be possible on the non-NASDAQ over-the-counter market. In such an event, a shareholder may find it more difficult to
dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of, the Company's securities.
As of May 1, 2008, there were 180 holders of record of the Company’s common stock. The Company has not paid any
cash dividends to date, and has no plans to do so in the immediate future.
Rule 144
Rule 144 has been amended by the SEC, effective February 15, 2008. Rule 144 is the common means for a stockholder to
resell restricted securities and for affiliates, to sell their securities, either restricted on non restricted (control) shares.
Under the amended Rule 144, an affiliate of a company filing reports under the Exchange Act who has held their shares
for more than six months, may sell in any three-month period an amount of shares that does not exceed the greater of:
●

the average weekly trading volume in the common stock, as reported through the automated quotation system of a registered
securities association, during the four calendar weeks preceding such sale, or

●

1% of the shares then outstanding. Sales by affiliates under Rule 144 are also subject to certain requirements as to the manner
of sale, filing appropriate notice and the availability of current public information about the issuer.

A non-affiliate stockholder of a reporting company who has held their shares for more than six months, may make
unlimited resales under Rule 144, provided only that the issuer has available current public information about itself. After a oneyear holding period, a non-affiliate may make unlimited sales with no other requirements or limitations.
An important exception to the above described availability of the amended Rule 144 is that Rule 144 is not available for
either a reporting or non-reporting shell company, unless the company:
●

has ceased to be a shell company;

●

Is subject to the Exchange Act reporting obligations;

●

has filed all required Exchange Act reports during the preceding twelve months; and
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●

At least one year has elapsed from the time the company filed with the SEC current Form
10 type information reflecting its status as an entity that is not a shell company.

Because the Company is considered a shell company, shareholders may not avail themselves to Rule 144 for a period of
one year from the date the Company files with the SEC current information reflecting that it no longer is a shell company.
Stockholders may sell their shares pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 or other available
exemption from registration.
ITEM 10

DESCRIPTION OF REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES TO BE REGISTERED

The Company's authorized capital stock consists of 120,000,000 shares, of which 100,000,00 are common stock with a
par value of $0.0001 per share, and of which 20,000,000 are preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share. We have
95,910,983 Common Shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this filing, and to date, no Preferred Shares have been issued.
(A)

Common Stock

All shares of our Common Stock have equal voting rights and, when validly issued and outstanding, are entitled to one
vote per share in all matters to be voted upon by shareholders. The shares of Common Stock have no preemptive, subscription,
conversion or redemption rights and may be issued only as fully-paid and nonassessable shares. Cumulative voting in the election
of directors is not permitted, which means that the holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock
represented at any meeting at which a quorum is present will be able to elect the entire Board of Directors if they so choose and, in
such event, the holders of the remaining shares of Common Stock will not be able to elect any directors. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, each shareholder is entitled to receive a proportionate share of the Company's assets available for distribution to
shareholders after the payment of liabilities a nd after distribution in full of preferential amounts, if any. All shares of the
Company's Common Stock issued and outstanding are fully-paid and nonassessable. Holders of the Common Stock are entitled to
share pro rata in dividends and distributions with respect to the Common Stock, as may be declared by the Board of Directors out
of funds legally available therefore.
(B)

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors of the Company has the authority to designate one or more series of preferred stock with such
voting powers, if any, and with such rights, preferences and privileges as the Board of Directors shall determine.
(C)

Dividends

Holders of the common stock are entitled to share equally in dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors
of the Company, out of funds legally available therefore. No
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dividend has been paid on the Company’s common stock since inception, and none is contemplated in the foreseeable future.
(D)

Transfer Agent
Standard Registrar
12528 S 1840 East
Draper, Utah 84020

ITEM 11

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a corporation may indemnify directors and officers
as well as other employees and individuals against expenses including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement in connection with various actions, suits or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative other
than an action by or in the right of the corporation, a derivative action, if they acted in good faith and in a manner they reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if
they had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was unlawful. A similar standard is applicable in the case of derivative
actions, except that indemnification only extends to expenses including attorneys' fees incurred in connection with the defense or
settlement of such actions, and the statute r equires court approval before there can be any indemnification where the person
seeking indemnification has been found liable to the corporation. The statute provides that it is not exclusive of other
indemnification that may be granted by a corporation's certificate of incorporation, bylaws, agreement, a vote of stockholders or
disinterested directors or otherwise.
The Company's By-Laws provide that the Company will indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by
Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended from time to time, each person that such section grants us the
power to indemnify.
The Delaware General Corporation Law permits a corporation to provide in its certificate of incorporation that a director
of the corporation shall not be personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director, except for liability for:
· any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;
· acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
· payments of unlawful dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; or
· any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

31

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation provides that, to the extent permitted by applicable law, none of our directors
will be personally liable to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director. Any
repeal or modification of this provision will be prospective only and will not adversely affect any limitation, right or protection of a
director of our company existing at the time of such repeal or modification.
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ITEM 12

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Michael F. Cronin
Certified Public Accountant
Orlando, FL 32708
Board of Directors and Shareholders
Desert Gateway, Inc.
Bartlesville, OK
I have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Desert Gateway, Inc. as of February 29, 2008 and the related statements of
operations, stockholders' deficiency and cash flows from inception (February 8, 2008) to the period then ended. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the directors. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audits.
I conducted my audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor was I engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. My audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluati ng the overall financial statement presentation. I
believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Desert
Gateway, Inc. as of February 29, 2008 and the results of its operations, its cash flows and changes in stockholders' deficiency from
inception (February 8, 2008) to the period then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The
Company has incurred a $52,000 loss from operations and has no cash. The Company may not have adequate readily available
resources to fund operations through 2008. This raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
Discussed in the notes and effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.
May 29, 2008
/s/ Michael F. Cronin
Michael F. Cronin
Certified Public Accountant
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Desert Gateway, Inc.
Balance Sheet
February 29,
2008

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$0
0
0

Total Assets

$0

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficiency
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable-trade
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Current portion of long term debt
Total current liabilities

$930
45,000
6,059
0
51,989

Stockholders' Deficiency:
Preferred stock (501 shares outstanding out of 20,000,000 authorized)
Common stock-100,000,000 authorized $0.0001 par value
95,910,983 issuable or issued & outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Common stock subscriptions receivable
Accumulated Deficit
Total Stockholders' Deficiency

1
9,591
(9,591)
0
(51,990)
(51,989)

Total Liabilities & Stockholders' Deficiency
See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements.
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$0

Desert Gateway, Inc.
Statement of Operations
Inception (February 8,
2008) to February 29,
2008

Revenue

$0

Costs & Expenses:
General & administrative
Impairment of Long Lived Assets
Interest
Total Costs & Expenses

51,990
0
0
51,990

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes,

(51,990)

Income taxes

0

Net Loss

($51,990)

Basic and diluted per share amounts:
Continuing operations
Basic and diluted net loss

Nil
Nil

Weighted average shares outstanding (basic & diluted)
95,910,983
See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements.
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Desert Gateway, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
Inception (February
8, 2008) to February
29, 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Loss
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss
to cash used in operating activities:
Fair value of services provided by related parties
Expenses paid by related parties
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable & accrued expenses
Cash used by operating activities:

($51,990)
0
6,060
45,930
0

Cash used in investing activities

0

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Cash generated by financing activities

0
0

Change in cash
Cash-beginning of period
Cash-end of period
See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements.
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0
0
$0

Desert Gateway, Inc.
Statement of Stockholders' Deficiency
Series "A" Preferred
Stock

Shares
0
501

Inception, February 8, 2008
Stock issued under 2008 reorganization
Net Loss
Balance at February 29, 2008
501
See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Financial Statements.

Common Stock

Shares

Common
Stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Amount
0
1

0
95,910,983

0
9,591

0
(9,591)

$1

95,910,983

9,591

($9,591)
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Accumulated
Deficit
$0
(51,990)
($51,990)

DESERT GATEWAY, INC.
BACKGROUND AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
February 29, 2008

The Company
Organizational Background: We were incorporated February 8, 2008 as a subsidiary of American Merchant Data Services, Inc.
Our former parent company, American Merchant Data Services, Inc. (American Merchant) was originally incorporated on January
27, 2000 in Florida as Boats.Com, Inc. On September 25, 2002 Boats.com, Inc. changed its name to American Merchant Data
Services, Inc. American Merchant later re-domiciled to Oklahoma in October, 2007.
During the fiscal period ended February 29, 2008 we consummated a reorganization which we refer to collectively as the “2008
Reorganization”. Desert Gateway, Inc. (“Company”) was essentially spun-off of American Merchant pursuant to section 1081 (a)
of the Oklahoma General Corporation Law, as a tax-free reorganization in which all American Merchant shareholders became
shareholders of Desert Gateway, Inc.(“Desert Gateway”) in the same proportion. As a result of the 2008 Reorganization, each share
of outstanding common stock of the American Merchant received one share of common stock of Desert Gateway with the same
rights, privileges, and preferences, including as to liquidation. In conjunction with the reorganization American Merchant
concluded a downstream merger into a second subsidiary. All of American Merchant’s operating assets, liabilities and tax attributes
(including accumulated losses and net operating losses) carried forward to the second subsidiary. American Merchant’s second
subsidiary is not a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, American Merchant is not considered a predecessor company for
accounting or legal purposes of Desert Gateway. Following the Reorganization we re-domiciled to Delaware. Since 2004 and prior
to consummation of the domiciliary merger in 2008, neither American Merchant nor Desert Gateway had any
Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: For financial statement presentation purposes, the Company considers those short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash or cash equivalents.
Property and Equipment New property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 5 years. Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Expenditures for minor items, repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. Gain or loss upon sale or retirement
due to obsolescence is reflected in the operating results in the period the event takes place.
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets: We review the recoverability of our long-lived assets including equipment, goodwill and other
intangible assets, when events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be
recoverable. The assessment of possible impairment is based on our ability to recover the carrying value of the asset from the
expected future pre-tax cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) of the related operations. If these cash flows are less
than the carrying value of such asset, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between estimated fair value and carrying
value. Our primary measure of fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The measurement of impairment requires management
to make estimates of these cash flows related to long-lived assets, as well as other fair value determinations.
Stock Based Compensation: Stock-based awards to non-employees are accounted for using the fair value method in accordance
with SFAS No. 123R, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and EITF Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments
that are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services.
We adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123(R)”), which requires that companies measure and recognize compensation expense at an amount equal to the fair value of
share-based payments granted under compensation arrangements. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for our stock-based
compensation plans under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, and would typically recognize no compensation expense
for stock option grants if options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant.
We adopted SFAS 123(R) using the “modified prospective” method, which results in no restatement of prior period amounts. Under
this method, the provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to all awards granted or modified after the date of adoption. In addition,
compensation expense must be recognized for any unvested stock option awards outstanding as of the date of adoption on a
straight-line basis over the remaining vesting period. We calculate the fair value of options using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model. We do not currently have any outstanding options subject to future vesting therefore no charge is required for the period
ended February 29, 2008.. SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense
to be reported in the
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Statement of Cash Flows as a financing cash inflow rather than an operating cash inflow. In addition, SFAS 123(R) required a
modification to the Company’s calculation of the dilutive effect of stock option awards on earnings per share. For companies that
adopt SFAS 123(R) using the “modified prospective” method, disclosure of pro forma information for periods prior to adoption
must continue to be made.
Accounting For Obligations And Instruments Potentially To Be Settled In The Company’s Own Stock: We account for obligations
and instruments potentially to be settled in the Company’s stock in accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-19, Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed To, and Potentially Settled In a Company’s Own Stock. This issue addresses the initial
balance sheet classification and measurement of contracts that are indexed to, and potentially settled in, the Company’s own stock.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments," requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments. Fair value estimates discussed
herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available to management as of February 29 2008. The
respective carrying value of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values.
These financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses. Fair values were assumed
to approximate carrying values for these financial instruments since they are short-term in nature and their carrying amounts
approximate fair values or they are receivable or payable on demand.
Earnings per Common Share: Basic net loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed using the weighted average number of common and
dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive common equivalent shares consist of options to purchase
common stock (only if those options are exercisable and at prices below the average share price for the period) and shares issuable
upon the conversion of our Preferred Stock. Due to the net losses reported, dilutive common equivalent shares were excluded from
the computation of diluted loss per share, as inclusion would be anti-dilutive for the periods presented.
There were no common equivalent shares required to be added to the basic weighted average shares outstanding to arrive at diluted
weighted average shares outstanding in 2008.
Income Taxes: We must make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement purposes.
These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from differences in the
timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial statement purposes.
Deferred income taxes are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” or SFAS 109. Under SFAS
No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between financial reporting and the tax basis of
assets and liabilities using the tax rates and laws in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
SFAS 109 provides for the recognition of deferred tax assets if realization of such assets is more likely than not to occur.
Realization of our net deferred tax assets is dependent upon our generating sufficient taxable income in future years in appropriate
tax jurisdictions to realize benefit from the reversal of temporary differences and from net operating loss, or NOL, carryforwards.
We have determined it more likely than not that these timing differences will not materialize and have provided a valuation
allowance against substantially all of our net deferred tax asset. Management will continue to evaluate the realizability of the
deferred tax asset and its related valuation allowance. If our assessment of the deferred tax assets or the corresponding valuation
allowance were to change, we would record the related adjustment to income during the period in which we make the
determination. Our tax rate may also vary based on our results and the mix of income or loss in domestic and for eign tax
jurisdictions in which we operate.
In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations.
We recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and
to the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. If we ultimately determine that payment of these amounts is unnecessary, we
will reverse the liability and recognize a tax benefit during the period in which we determine that the liability is no longer
necessary. We will record an additional charge in our provision for taxes in the period in which we determine that the recorded tax
liability is less than we expect the ultimate assessment to be.
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting
for Income Taxes," ("SFAS 109") which requires recognition of estimated income taxes payable or refundable on income tax
returns for the current year and for the estimated future tax effect attributable to temporary differences and carry-forwards.
Measurement of deferred income tax is based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax
assets being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 provides guidance for using
fair value to measure assets and liabilities. It also responds to investors’ requests for expanded information about the extent to
which companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value
measurements on earnings. SFAS 157 applies whenever other standards required (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at
fair value, and does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 157
will have on our results of operations and financial condition and are not yet in a position to determine such effects.
In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 establishes an approach that
requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. SAB 108 is effective for the year ending
December 31, 2006.
In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (" SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair values. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years after November 15, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 159 on our financial statements.
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 141 (Revised 2007), Business
Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS 141R provides additional guidance on improving the relevance, representational faithfulness,
and comparability of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination
and its effects. This Statement applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This
Statement is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 160 on our financial statements.
Management does not anticipate that the adoption of these standards will have a material impact on the financial statements.
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DESERT GATEWAY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 29, 2008

.
1.

Income Taxes:

We have adopted SFAS 109 which provides for the recognition of a deferred tax asset based upon the value the loss carry-forwards
will have to reduce future income taxes and management's estimate of the probability of the realization of these tax benefits. Our
net operating loss carryovers incurred prior to 2005 considered available to reduce future income taxes were reduced or eliminated
through our recent change of control (I.R.C. Section 382(a)) and the continuity of business limitation of I.R.C. Section 382(c).
We have a current operating loss carry-forward of $ 52,000 resulting in deferred tax assets of $17,600. We have determined it more
likely than not that these timing differences will not materialize and have provided a valuation allowance against substantially all
our net deferred tax asset.
Future utilization of currently generated federal and state NOL and tax credit carry forwards may be subject to a substantial annual
limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and similar state
provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of NIL and tax credit carryforwards before full utilization.
2.

Commitments:

The Company is not a party to any leases and does not have any commitments
3.

Stockholders' Equity:

Common Stock
We are currently authorized to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of $ 0.0001 par value common stock. All issued shares of common
stock are entitled to vote on a 1 share/1 vote basis..
Recent Sales of Common Stock-2008 Reorganization
In February, 2008, we issued 95,910,983 common shares to the shareholders of our former parent company, AMDS. .
Preferred Stock
We are currently authorized to issue up to 20,000,000 shares of $ 0.0001 preferred stock.
Stock Options
There are no employee or non-employee options grants.
4.

Related Party Transactions Not Disclosed Elsewhere

Due Related Parties:
Other amounts due related parties consist of corporate reinstatement expenses paid by the principal shareholder prior to the
establishment of a bank account.
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ITEM 13

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There are no disagreements with the findings of our accountant.
ITEM 14

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS

(A)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B)

EXHIBIT INDEX
3.1

Articles of Incorporation

3.2

Bylaws

23.1

Consent of Michael F. Cronin, C.P.A.

31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 12a-14(a) or 15d14(a).

31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d14(a).

32.1

Certifications pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Desert Gateway, Inc.
Date:

August 25, 2008

By:

/s/ Robert Wilson
Robert Wilson
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Sole Director
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of
DESERT GATEWAY, INC
A Delaware Corporation
I, the undersigned, being the original Incorporator herein named, for the purpose
of forming a corporation under the General Corporation Act Delaware. (“GCA”) to do
business both within and without the State of Delaware, do make and file these
Certificate of Incorporation hereby declaring and certifying that the facts herein stated are
true:
ARTICLE I
NAME
The name of the Corporation is DESERT GATEWAY, INC.
ARTICLE II
PRINCIPAL OFFICE
Section 2.01

Corporate Offices. The address of its corporate office is 414 SE

Washington Blvd, PMB 102, Bartlesville, OK 74006.
Section 2.02

Other Offices. The Corporation may also maintain offices for the

transaction of any business at such other places within or without the State of Delaware
as it may from time to time determine. Corporate business of every kind and nature may
be conducted, and meetings of Directors and shareholders held outside the State of
Delaware with the same effect as if in the State of Delaware.
ARTICLE III
PURPOSE
The Corporation is organized for the purpose of engaging in any lawful activity,
within or without the State of Delaware.
1

ARTICLE IV
SHARES OF STOCK
Section 4.01 Authorized Shares: The aggregate number of shares of stock that
the corporation is authorized to issue is one hundred twenty million (120,000,000)
shares, one hundred million (100,000,000) shares of common stock, par value $0.0001,
and twenty million (20,000,000) shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001, which
shares may be issued from time to time without action from the shareholders, for such
consideration as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors, and shares so
issued, the full consideration for which has been paid or delivered, shall be deemed fully
paid stock, and the holders of such shares shall not be liable for any further payments
thereon..
Section 4.02

Rights for Preferred Shares:The Board of Directors is expressly

authorized to adopt, from time to time, a resolution or resolutions providing for the
issuers of preferred stock in one or more series, to fix the number of shares in each series
and to fix the designations and the powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional and other special rights and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions of
such shares, of each such series of preferred stock:
(a) The number of shares constituting the series and the distinctive
designation of the series;
(b) The dividend rate on the shares of the series, the conditions and dated
upon which dividends on such shares shall be payable, the extent, if
any, to which dividends on such shares shall be cumulative, and the
relative rights of preference, if any, of payment of dividends on such
shares;
(c) Whether or not the shares of the series are redeemable and, if
redeemable, the time or times during which they shall be redeemable
and the amount per share payable on redemption;
(d) The amount payable in respect to the shares of the series, in the event
of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of this corporation, which
amount may, but need not, vary according to the time or circumstances
of such action, and the relative rights of preference, if any, of payment
of such amount;
(e) Any requirement as to a sinking fund for the shares of the series, or
any requirement as to the redemption, purchase or other retirement by
this corporation of the shares of the series;
(f) The right, if any, to exchange or convert shares of the series into other
securities or property, and the rate or basis, time, manner and condition
of the exchange or conversion;
(g) The voting rights, if any, to which the holders of shares of the series
shall be entitled in addition to the voting rights provided by the law;
and
(h) Any other terms, conditions or provisions of this ARTICLE or any
resolution adopted by the Board of Directors pursuant to this

ARTICLE.
The number of authorized shares of preferred stock may be increased or decreased
by the affirmative vote of the stock holders of a majority of the stock of this corporation
entitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders. No holder of shares of preferred stock of
this corporation shall, by reason of such holding, have any preemptive right to subscribe
to any additional issue of any stock of any class or series not to any security convertible
into such stock.
Section 4.03 Statement of Rights for Common Stock
(a) Subject to any prior rights to receive dividends to which the holders
of shares of any series of the preferred stock may be entitled the
holders of shared of the common stock shall be entitled to receive
dividends, if and when declared payable from time to time by the
Board of Directors, from funds legally available for payment of
dividends.
(b) In the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of this
corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, after there shall have
been paid to the holders of the shares of preferred stock, the full
amounts to which they shall be entitled, the holders of the then
outstanding shares of common stock shall be entitled to receive, pro
rata, any remaining assets of this corporation available for distribution
to its shareholders. The Board of Directors may distribute in kind to
the holders of the shares of common stock such remaining assets of
this corporation or may sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or any
part of such remaining assets to any other corporation, trust or entity
and receive payment in cash, stock, or obligations of such other
corporation, trust or entity or any combination of such cash, stock, or
obligations and may sell all or part of the consideration so received or
any balance or proceeds of it to holders of the shares of common
stock. The voluntary sale, conveyance, lease exchange or transfer of
all or substantially all the property or assets of this corporation (unless
in connection with that event the dissolution , liquidation or winding
up of this corporation is specifically approved), or the merger or
consolidation of this corporation into or with any other corporation, or
the merger of any other corporation into

it, or any purchase or

redemption of shares of stock of this corporation of any class, shall
not be deemed to be a dissolution, liquidation or winding up of this
corporation for the purpose of this paragraph
(c) Except as provided by law or this certificate of incorporation with
respect to voting by class or series, each outstanding share of common
stock of this corporation shall entitle the holder of that share to one
vote on each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of shareholders.
(d)

Such number of shares of common stock as may from time to time be

required for such purpose shall be reversed for issuance (i) upon conversion of any shares

or preferred stock or any obligation of this corporation convertible in to shares of
common stock and (ii) upon exercise of any options or warrants to purchase shares of
common stock.
Section 4.04 Class “A” Preferred Shares.
(a) Designation and Amount: The designation of the Class “A” Preferred
shares, .001 par value, which consist of one thousand (1,000) shares.
(b) Rank: The Class “A” Preferred Shares, .001 par value shall rank (i)
prior to the Common Stock (ii) prior to any class of capital stock of the
Corporation hereinafter created other than “Pari Passu Securities”
(collectively, with the Common Stock, “Junior Securities”) and (iii)
pari passu with any class of capital stock of the Corporation hereafter
created specifically ranking on parity with the Class “A” Preferred
shared, .001 par value (“Pari Passu Securities”)
(c) Interest: The Holder shall not be entitled to receive any interest on the
Class “A” Preferred shares, .001 par value shares
(d) Liquidation Preferences:

The Holders of the Class “A” Preferred

shares, .001 par value, shall have liquidation preferences equal to the
holders of the common shares issued by the Corporation, except as a
reserved in this Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of
the Class “A” Preferred shares, .001 par value, and as set forth below.
At the option of each Holder, any proposed sale conveyance of disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, the effectuation by the Corporation, of a
transaction or series or related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power
of the Corporation is disposed of, or the consolidation, merger of other business
combination of the corporation with or into any other Person (as defined below) or
Persons when the corporation is not the survivor shall either be deemed to be liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation. The Holders of the Class ”A” Preferred
shares shall be entitled to vote as a separate group than that of the holders of any
“common” shares, or subsequently issued “preferred “ shares.
The consent of the holders of majority of the Class “A” Preferred shares then
outstanding shall be required for the Corporation to enter into any sale, conveyance of
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, the effectuation by
the Corporation of a transaction or series of related transactions in which more than 50%
of the voting power of the Corporation is disposed of, or the consolidation , merger or
other business entity, when the corporation with or into any other person or business
entity, when the corporation is not the survivor.
(e)
Voting Rights: The holders of Class “A” Preferred shares shall have the
right to vote shares as a separate group.

Any vote required by the Articles of

Incorporation, the Bylaws or Delaware law to be submitted to the shareholders for
approval must also be submitted to the holders of the Class “A” Preferred shares for
approval. The holders of class “A” preferred shall also have the right to propose for a
vote, matters to the shareholders. The affirmative vote of the Holders of a majority of the
Class “A” Preferred shares shall be required for the passage of any matter submitted. (By

way of example if the holders of a majority of the common shares vote in favor of matter,
and a majority of the holders of the Class “A” Preferred shares vote against the matter,
the matter shall fail. In the alternative, if a maj ority of the holders of the Company’s
common shares vote against a matter, and a majority of the Class “A” Preferred holders
vote in favor of the matter, the matter shall be approved.)
(f)
Protective Provisions: So long as shares of the Class “A” Preferred shares
are outstanding, the Corporation shall not, without first obtaining the approval by vote or
written consent of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of
Class “A” Preferred shares:
(i)
Alter or change the rights, preferences or privileges of the Class “A”
Preferred shares; or
(ii) Create any new class of capital stock having a preference over the
Class “A” Preferred shares which would be in conflict with any of the terms and
conditions this Certificate; or
(iii) Do any act or things not authorized or contemplated by this
Certificate of Designation which would result in taxation of the holders of shares
of the Class “A” Preferred shares under Section 305 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (or any comparable provision of the Internal Revenue Code
as hereafter from time to time amended.)
(iv) In the event holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding
shares of the Class “A” Preferred shares agree to allow the Corporation to alter or
change the rights, preferences or privileges of the shares of Class “A” Preferred
shares, pursuant to subsection (a) above, so as to effect the Class “A Preferred
shares, then the Corporation will deliver notice of such approved change to the
holders of the Class “A” Preferred shares that did not agree to such alteration or
change (the “Dissenting Holders”).
Section 4.5 Miscellaneous.
(a)
Loss, Theft, Destruction of Convertible Shares. Upon receipt of evidence
satisfactory to the Corporation of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of shares of
Class “A” Preferred shares and, in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction, upon
receipt of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, or, in the case
of any such mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of the Class “A” Preferred
shares, the Corporation shall make, issue and deliver, in lieu of such lost, stolen,
destroyed or mutilated shares of Class “A” Preferred shares, new shares of Class “A”
Preferred shares of like tenor. The Class “A” Preferred shares shall be held and owned
upon the express condition that the provision of this paragraph are exclusive with respect
to the replacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen shares of Class “A” Preferred
shares and shall preclude any and all other rights and remedies notwithstanding any law
or statute existing or hereafter enacted to the contrary with respect to the replacement of
negotiable instruments or other securities without the surrender thereof.
(b)
Who Deemed Absolute Owner. The Corporation may deem the Person in
whose name the Class “A” Preferred shares shall be registered upon the registry books of
the Corporation to be, and may treat it as, the absolute owner of the Class “A” Preferred

shares for the purpose of receiving payment of Interest on the Class “A” Preferred shares,
for the conversion of the Class “A” Preferred shares and for all other purposes, and the
Corporation shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. All such payments and
such conversion shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon the
Class “A” Preferred shares to the extent of the sum or sums so paid or the conversion so
made.
(c)

Notice of Certain Events.

In the case of the occurrence of any event

descried in this Certificate of Designations, the Corporation shall cause to be mailed to
the Holder of the Class “A” Preferred shares at its last address as it appears in the
Corporation’s security registry, at least twenty (20) day prior to the applicable record,
effective or expiration date hereinafter specified (or, if such twenty (20) days notice is not
possible, at the earliest possible date prior to any such record, effective, or expiration
date), a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such
Interest, distribution, issuance or granting of rights, options or warrants, or if a record is
not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of record of Class “A” Preferred shares
to be entitled to such Interest, distribution, issuance or granting of ri ghts, options or
warrants are to be determined, or (y) the date on which such reclassification,
consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, dissolution, liquidation or winding up.
(d)
Register. The Corporation shall keep at its principal office a register in
which the Corporation shall provide for the registration of the Class “A” Preferred shares.
Upon any transfer of the Class “A” Preferred shares in accordance with the provisions
hereof, the Corporation shall register such transfer on the Class “A” Preferred shares
register. The Corporation may deem the person in whose name the Class “A” Preferred
shares shall be registered upon the registry books of the Corporation to be, and may treat
it as, the absolute owner of the Class “A” Preferred shares for any purpose.
(e)
Withholding. To the extent required by applicable law, the Corporation may
withhold amounts of or on account of any taxes imposed or levied by or on behalf of any
taxing authority in the United States having jurisdiction over the Corporation from any
payments made pursuant to the Class “A” Preferred shares.
(f)
Headings. The headings of the Articles and Sections of this Certificate of
Designations are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute a part of this
Certificate of Designations.
ARTICLE V
DIRECTORS
Section 5.01

Governing Board. The members of the Board of the Corporation

shall be styled Directors.
Section 5.02

Initial Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist

of at least one (1) but no more than three (3) members. The name(s) and address(s) of the
initial members of the Board of Directors are as follows:
Name

Address
Robert Wilson
414 S.E. Washington Blvd., PMB <___>
Bartlesville, Delaware74006
This individual shall serve as Director until the first Annual Meeting of the

Shareholders or until the successors shall have been elected and qualified.

Section 5.03

Change in the Number of Directors. The number of Directors

may be increased or decreased by duly adopted amendment to the Bylaws of the
Corporation.
ARTICLE VI
INCORPORATORS
The name and address of the sole Incorporator is Robert Wilson, 414 SE
Washington Blvd., PMB <___>, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74006.
ARTICLE VII
PERIOD OF DURATION
This Corporation is to have A PERPETUAL existence.
ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS
The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision
contained in this Certificate of Incorporation or its Bylaws, in the manner now or
hereafter prescribed by statute or by this Certificate of Incorporation or said Bylaws, and
all rights conferred upon the shareholders are granted subject to this reservation.
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ARTICLE IX
POWERS OF DIRECTORS
In furtherance, and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board
of Directors is expressly authorized:
(1)
Subject to the Bylaws, if any, adopted by the shareholders, to make, alter or
repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation;
(2)
To authorize and cause to be executed mortgages and liens, with or without
limit as to amount, upon the real and personal property of the Corporation;
(3)
To authorize the guaranty by the Corporation of securities, evidences of
indebtedness and obligations of other persons, corporations and business entities;
(4)
To set apart out of any of the funds of the Corporation available for
dividends a reserve or reserves for any proper purpose and to abolish any such reserve;
and
(5)

By resolution adopted by a majority of the whole Board, to designate one or

more committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the Directors of the
Corporation, which, to the extent provided in the resolution or in the Bylaws of the
Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may
authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it.
Such committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be stated in the
Bylaws of the Corporation or as may be determined from time to time by resolution
adopted by the Board of Directors.
(6)
All corporate powers of the Corporation shall be exercised by the Board of
Directors except as otherwise provided herein or by law.
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ARTICLE X
REGISTERED AGENT
Initial Registered Office and Initial Registered Agent.

The address of the

Corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is 160 Greentree Dr., Suite 101 in
the City of Dover, County of Kent. The name of the corporation’s registered agent at such
address is National Registered Agents, Inc.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 7th day of February,
2008, hereby declaring and certifying that the facts stated herein above are true.
_________________________________
Robert Wilson
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BYLAWS
OF
DESERT GATEWAY, INC.

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

1.1
Registered Office. The registered office shall be in the National Registered
Agents,160 Greentree Dr., Suite 101 in the City of Dover, County of Kent.
1.2
Offices. The principal office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware
shall be located at such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.
The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of
Delaware, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the Corporation
may require from time to time. The registered office of the Corporation as required by the
Delaware Corporation Act to be maintained in the State of Delaware, may be, but is not
required to be identical to the principal office and the address of the registered agent may
be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.
ARTICLE II
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS
2.1
Location. All meetings of the stockholders for the election of directors
shall be held within or with out the state of Delaware at such place as may be fixed from
time to time by the Board of Directors, or at such other place either within or without the
State of Delaware as shall be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors and
stated in the notice of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may, in
its sole discretion, determine that the meeting shall not be held at any place, but may
instead be held solely by means of remote communication as authorized by the Delaware
Statute (“DS”). Meetings of stockholders for any other purpDSe may be held at such time
and place, if any, within or without the State of Delaware, as shall be stated in
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the notice of the meeting or in a duly executed waiver of notice thereof, or a waiver by
electronic transmission by the person entitled to notice.
2.2
Timing. Annual meetings of stockholders, commencing with the year 2008,
shall be held at such date and time as shall be designated from time to time by the Board
of Directors and stated in the notice of the meeting, at which they shall elect by a
plurality vote a Board of Directors, and transact such other business as may properly be
brought before the meeting.
2.3
Notice of Meeting. Written notice of any stockholder meeting stating the
place, if any, date and hour of the meeting, the means of remote communication, if any,
by which stockholders and proxyholders may be deemed to be present in person and vote
at such meeting, shall be given to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting not
fewer than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting.
2.4
Stockholders Records. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of
the corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged
in alphabetical order, and showing the address (but not the electronic address or other
electronic contact information) of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in
the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any
stockholder, for any purpDSe germane to the meeting for a period of at least 10 days
prior to the meeting: (i) on a reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that the
information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting,
or (ii) during ordinary business hours, at the principal place of business of the
corporation. In the event that the corporation determines to make the list available on an
electronic network, the corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure that such
information is available only to stockholders of the corporation. The stockholder shall
bear the cost for all copies. If the meeting is to be held at a place, then the list shall be
produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof,
and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present. If the meeting is to be held
solely by means of remote communication, then the list shall also
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be open to the examination of any stockholder during the whole time of the meeting on a
reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information required to access such list
shall be provided with the notice of the meeting.
2.5
Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders, for any purpose or
purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute or by the certificate of incorporation,
may be called by the president and shall be called by the president or secretary at the
request in writing of a majority of the Board of Directors, or at the request in writing of
stockholders owning at least 50% in amount of the entire capital stock of the corporation
issued and outstanding and entitled to vote. Such request shall state the purpose or
purposes of the proposed meeting.
2.6
Notice of Meeting. Written notice of a special meeting stating the place,
date and hour of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called,
shall be given not fewer than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the
meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting. The means of remote
communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxyholders may be deemed to be
present in person and vote at such meeting shall also be provided in the notice. Notice of
the Meeting is not required if a majority of the shares are in favor of a written consent.
2.7
Business Transacted at Special Meeting. Business transacted at any
special meeting of stockholders shall be limited to the purposes stated in the notice.
2.8

Quorum; Meeting Adjournment; Presence by Remote Means.

(a)
Quorum; Meeting Adjournment. The holders of a majority of the
stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or
represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the stockholders
for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the
certificate of incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or
represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders
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entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have
power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than
announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented. At
such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any
business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the meeting as
originally notified. If the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after
the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of
the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote
at the meeting.
(b)
Presence by Remote Means. If authorized by the Board of Directors
in its sole discretion, and subject to such guidelines and procedures as the Board of
Directors may adopt, stockholders and proxyholders not physically present at a
meeting of stockholders may, by means of remote communication:
(1)

participate in a meeting of stockholders; and

(2)
be deemed present in person and vote at a meeting of
stockholders whether such meeting is to be held at a designated place or
solely by means of remote communication, provided that (i) the corporation
shall implement reasonable measures to verify that each person deemed
present and permitted to vote at the meeting by means of remote
communication is a stockholder or proxyholder, (ii) the corporation shall
implement reasonable measures to provide such stockholders and
proxyholders a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to
vote on matters submitted to the stockholders, including an opportunity to
read or hear the proceedings of the meeting substantially concurrently with
such proceedings, and (iii) if any stockholder or proxyholder votes or takes
other action at the meeting by means of remote communication, a record of
such vote or other action shall be maintained b y the corporation.
2.9
Voting Thresholds. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of
the holders of a majority of the stock having voting power present in person or
represented by proxy shall decide any question
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brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which by express provision
of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation, a different vote is required, in which
case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.
2.10 Number of Votes Per Share. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate
of incorporation, each stockholder shall at every meeting of the stockholders be entitled
to one vote by such stockholder or by proxy for each share of the capital stock having
voting power held by such stockholder, but no proxy shall be voted on after three years
from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period.
2.11
of Action.

Action by Written Consent of Stockholders; Electronic Consent; Notice

(a)
Action by Written Consent of Stockholders. Unless otherwise
provided by the certificate of incorporation, any action required or permitted to be
taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders may be taken without a
meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing setting
forth the action so taken, is signed in a manner permitted by law by the holders of
outstanding stock having not less than the number of votes that would be
necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled
to vote thereon were present and voted. Written stockholder consents shall bear the
date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent in the manner
permitted by law and shall be delivered to the corporation as provided in
subsection (b) below. No written consent shall be effective to take the action set
forth therein unless, w ithin sixty (60) days of the earliest dated consent delivered
to the corporation in the manner provided above, written consents signed by a
sufficient number of stockholders to take the action set forth therein are delivered
to the corporation in the manner provided above.
(b)
Electronic Consent. A telegram, cablegram or other electronic
transmission consenting to an action to be taken and transmitted by a stockholder
or proxyholder, or a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder or
proxyholder, shall be deemed to be written, signed and dated for the purposes of
this section,
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provided that any such telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission sets
forth or is delivered with information from which the corporation can determine
(1) that the telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission was transmitted
by the stockholder or proxyholder or by a person or persons authorized to act for
the stockholder or proxyholder and (2) the date on which such stockholder or
proxyholder or authorized person or persons transmitted such telegram, cablegram
or electronic transmission. The date on which such telegram, cablegram or
electronic transmission is transmitted shall be deemed to be the date on which such
consent was signed. No consent given by telegram, cablegram or other electronic
transmission shall be deemed to have been delivered until such consent is
reproduced in paper form and until such paper form is delivered to the corporation
by deliver y to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its principal place of
business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in
which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to a
corporation’s registered office shall be made by hand or by certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested. Notwithstanding the foregoing limitations on
delivery, consents given by telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission
may be otherwise delivered to the principal place of business of the corporation or
to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which
proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded if, to the extent and in the
manner provided by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation.
ARTICLE III
DIRECTORS
3.1
Authorized Directors. The number of directors that shall constitute the
whole Board of Directors shall be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors or
by the stockholders at the annual meeting of the stockholders, except as provided in
Section 3.2 of this Article, and each director elected shall hold office until his successor is
elected and qualified. Directors need not be stockholders.
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3.2
Vacancies. Unless otherwise provided in the corporation’s certificate of
incorporation, as it may be amended, vacancies and newly created directorships resulting
from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a majority of the
directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, and
the directors so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election and until their
successors are duly elected and shall qualify, unless sooner displaced. If there are no
directors in office, then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by
statute.
3.3
Board Authority. The business of the corporation shall be managed by or
under the direction of its Board of Directors, which may exercise all such powers of the
corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the
certificate of incorporation or by these bylaws directed or required to be exercised or
done by the stockholders.
3.4
Location of Meetings. The Board of Directors of the corporation may hold
meetings, both regular and special, either within or without the State of Delaware.
3.5
First Meeting. The first meeting of each newly elected Board of Directors
shall be held at such time and place as shall be fixed by the vote of the stockholders at the
annual meeting and no notice of such meeting shall be necessary to the newly elected
directors in order to legally constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall be present. In
the event of the failure of the stockholders to fix the time or place of such first meeting of
the newly elected Board of Directors, or in the event such meeting is not held at the time
and place so fixed by the stockholders, the meeting may be held at such time and place as
shall be specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special meetings of the
Board of Directors, or as shall be specified in a written waiver signed by all of the
directors.
3.6
Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be
held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be
determined by the Board of Directors.
3.7
Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be
called by the president upon notice to each director; special meetings shall be called by
the president or secretary in like manner and
7

on like notice on the written request of two (2) directors unless the Board of Directors
consists of only one director, in which case special meetings shall be called by the
president or secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of the sole
director. Notice of any special meeting shall be given to each director at his business or
residence in writing, or by telegram, facsimile transmission, telephone communication or
electronic transmission (provided, with respect to electronic transmission, that the
director has consented to receive the form of transmission at the address to which it is
directed). If mailed, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when deposited in
the United States mails so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid, at least five (5) days
before such meeting. If by telegram, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered
when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company at least twenty-four (24) hours
before such meeting. If by facsimile transmission or other electronic transmission, such
notice shall be transmitted at least twenty-four (24) hours before such meeting. If by
telephone, the notice shall be given at least twelve (12) hours prior to the time set for the
meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or
special meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice of such meeting,
except for amendments to these Bylaws as provided under Section 8.1 of Article VIII
hereof. A meeting may be held at any time without notice if all the directors are present
(except as otherwise provided by law) or if those not present waive notice of the meeting
in writing, either before or after such meeting.
3.8
Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of the
directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and any act of a
majority of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be an act
of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or
by the certificate of incorporation. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of the Board
of Directors, the directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time,
without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
3.9
Action Without a Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate
of incorporation or these bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a
meeting if all members of the Board of Directors or committee, as the case may be,
consent thereto in
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writing or by electronic transmission, and the writing, writings, electronic transmission or
transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or
committee.
3.10 Telephonic Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of
incorporation or these bylaws, members of the Board of Directors or any committee
designated by the Board of Directors may participate in a meeting of the Board of
Directors or any committee, by means of conference telephone or other means of
communication by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and
such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
3.11 Committees. The Board of Directors may designate one or more
committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors of the corporation.
The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any
committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the
committee.
In the absence or disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or
members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not
he or she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the
Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified
member.
Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of
Directors, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of
Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, and may
authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it, but
no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to the following
matters: (i) approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or
matter expressly required by the DS to be submitted to stockholders for approval or (ii)
adopting, amending or repealing any provision of these bylaws.
3.12 Minutes of Meetings. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its
meetings and report the same to the Board of Directors when required.
3.13 Compensation of Directors. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate
of incorporation or these bylaws, the Board of Directors shall
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have the authority to fix the compensation of directors. The directors may be paid their
expenses, if any, of attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors and may be paid
a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated salary as
director. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving the corporation in any
other capacity and receiving compensation therefor. Members of special or standing
committees may be allowed like compensation for attending committee meetings.
3.14

Removal of Directors. Unless otherwise provided by the certificate
of incorporation or these bylaws, any director or the entire Board of
Directors may be removed, with or without cause, by the holders of
a majority of shares entitled to vote at an election of directors.

ARTICLE IV
NOTICES
4.1
Notice. Unless otherwise provided in these bylaws, whenever, under the
provisions of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these bylaws, notice is
required to be given to any director or stockholder, it shall not be construed to mean
personal notice, but such notice may be given in writing, by mail, addressed to such
director or stockholder, at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with
postage thereon prepaid, and such notice shall be deemed to be given at the time when
the same shall be deposited in the United States mail. Notice to directors may also be
given by telegram.
4.2
Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the
provisions of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these bylaws, a
waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto.
4.3

Electronic Notice.

(a)
Electronic Transmission. Without limiting the manner by which
notice otherwise may be given effectively to stockholders
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and directors, any notice to stockholders or directors given by the corporation
under any provision of the DS, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws
shall be effective if given by a form of electronic transmission consented to by the
stockholder or director to whom the notice is given. Any such consent shall be
revocable by the stockholder or director by written notice to the corporation. Any
such consent shall be deemed revoked if (1) the corporation is unable to deliver by
electronic transmission two consecutive notices given by the corporation in
accordance with such consent and (2) such inability becomes known to the
secretary or an assistant secretary of the corporation or to the transfer agent, or
other person responsible for the giving of notice; provided, however, the
inadvertent failure to treat such inability as a revocation shall not invalidate any
meeti ng or other action.
(b)
Effective Date of Notice. Notice given pursuant to subsection (a) of
this section shall be deemed given: (1) if by facsimile telecommunication, when
directed to a number at which the stockholder or director has consented to receive
notice; (2) if by electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at
which the stockholder or director has consented to receive notice; (3) if by a
posting on an electronic network together with separate notice to the stockholder
or director of such specific posting, upon the later of (i) such posting and (ii) the
giving of such separate notice; and (4) if by any other form of electronic
transmission, when directed to the stockholder or director. An affidavit of the
secretary or an assistant secretary or of the transfer agent or other agent of the
corporation that the notice has been given by a form of electronic transmission
shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein.
(c)
Form of Electronic Transmission. For purposes of these bylaws,
“electronic transmission” means any form of communication, not directly involving the
physical transmission of paper, that creates a record that may be retained, retrieved, and
reviewed by a recipient thereof, and that may be directly reproduced in paper form by
such a recipient through an automated process.
ARTICLE V
OFFICERS
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5.1
Required and Permitted Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be
chosen by the Board of Directors and shall be a president, treasurer and a secretary. The
Board of Directors may elect from among its members a Chairman of the Board and a
Vice-Chairman of the Board. The Board of Directors may also choose one or more vicepresidents, assistant secretaries and assistant treasurers. Any number of offices may be
held by the same person, unless the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws otherwise
provide.
5.2
Appointment of Required Officers. The Board of Directors at its first
meeting after each annual meeting of stockholders shall choose a president, a treasurer,
and a secretary and may choose vice-presidents.
5.3
Appointment of Permitted Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint
such other officers and agents as it shall deem necessary who shall hold their offices for
such terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined
from time to time by the Board of Directors.
5.4
Officer Compensation. The salaries of all officers and agents of the
corporation shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.
5.5
Term of Office; Vacancies. The officers of the corporation shall hold
office until their successors are chosen and qualify. Any officer elected or appointed by
the Board of Directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority
of the Board of Directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the corporation shall be
filled by the Board of Directors.
THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
5.6
Chairman Presides. The Chairman of the Board, if any, shall preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors and of the stockholders at which he or she shall be
present. He or she shall have and may exercise such powers as are, from time to time,
assigned to him by the Board of Directors and as may be provided by law.
5.7
Absence of Chairman. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the
Vice-Chairman of the Board, if any, shall preside at all
12

meetings of the Board of Directors and of the stockholders at which he or she shall be
present. He or she shall have and may exercise such powers as are, from time to time,
assigned to him by the Board of Directors and as may be provided by law.
THE PRESIDENT AND VICE-PRESIDENTS
5.8
Powers of President. The president shall be the chief executive officer of
the corporation; in the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board he or
she shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the Board of Directors; he or she
shall have general and active management of the business of the corporation and shall see
that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect.
5.9
President’s Signature Authority. The president shall execute bonds,
mortgages and other contracts requiring a seal, under the seal of the corporation, except
where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except
where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of
Directors to some other officer or agent of the corporation.
5.10 Absence of President. In the absence of the president or in the event of his
inability or refusal to act, the vice-president, if any, (or in the event there be more than
one vice-president, the vice-presidents in the order designated by the directors, or in the
absence of any designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of
the president, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the
restrictions upon the president. The vice-presidents shall perform such other duties and
have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.
THE SECRETARY AND ASSISTANT SECRETARY
5.11 Duties of Secretary. The secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of
Directors and all meetings of the stockholders and record all the proceedings of the
meetings of the corporation and of the Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that
purpose and shall perform like duties for the standing committees when required. He or
She shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders and special
meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors or president, under whose
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supervision he or she shall be. He or She shall have custody of the corporate seal of the
corporation and he or she, or an assistant secretary, shall have authority to affix the same
to any instrument requiring it and when so affixed, it may be attested by his signature or
by the signature of such assistant secretary. The Board of Directors may give general
authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the corporation and to attest the affixing
by his signature.
5.12 Duties of Assistant Secretary. The assistant secretary, or if there be more
than one, the assistant secretaries in the order determined by the Board of Directors (or if
there be no such determination, then in the order of their election) shall, in the absence of
the secretary or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and
exercise the powers of the secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such
other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.
THE TREASURER AND ASSISTANT TREASURERS
5.13 Duties of Treasurer. The treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate
funds and securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and
disbursements in books belonging to the corporation and shall deposit all moneys and
other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the corporation in such depositories
as may be designated by the Board of Directors.
5.14 Disbursements and Financial Reports. He or She shall disburse the funds
of the corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers
for such disbursements, and shall render to the president and the Board of Directors, at its
regular meetings or when the Board of Directors so requires, an account of all his
transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation.
5.15 Treasurer’s Bond. If required by the Board of Directors, the treasurer shall
give the corporation a bond (which shall be renewed every six years) in such sum and
with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the
faithful performance of the duties of his office and for the restoration to the corporation,
in case of his death, resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all books, papers,
vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his possession or under his
control belonging to the corporation.
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5.16 Duties of Assistant Treasurer. The assistant treasurer, or if there shall be
more than one, the assistant treasurers in the order determined by the Board of Directors
(or if there be no such determination, then in the order of their election) shall, in the
absence of the treasurer or in the event of the treasurer’s inability or refusal to act,
perform the duties and exercise the powers of the treasurer and shall perform such other
duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time
prescribe.
ARTICLE VI
CERTIFICATE OF STOCK
6.1
Stock Certificates. Every holder of stock in the corporation shall be
entitled to have a certificate, signed by or in the name of the corporation by, the Chairman
or Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, or the president or a vice-president and the
treasurer or an assistant treasurer, or the secretary or an assistant secretary of the
corporation, certifying the number of shares owned by him in the corporation.
Certificates may be issued for partly paid shares and in such case upon the face or
back of the certificates issued to represent any such partly paid shares, the total amount of
the consideration to be paid therefor, and the amount paid thereon shall be specified.
If the corporation shall be authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more
than one series of any class, the powers, designations, preferences and relative
participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and
the qualification, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights shall be set
forth in full or summarized on the face or back of the certificate which the corporation
shall issue to represent such class or series of stock, provided that, except as otherwise
provided in the DS, in lieu of the foregoing requirements, there may be set forth on the
face or back of the certificate which the corporation shall issue to represent such class or
series of stock, a statement that the corporation will furnish without charge to each
stockholder who so requests the powers, designations, preferences and relative
participating, optional or other sp ecial rights of each class of stock or series thereof and
the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights.
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6.2
Facsimile Signatures. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be
facsimile. In the event that any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or
whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such
officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, the certificate may be
issued by the corporation with the same effect as if such officer, transfer agent or registrar
were still acting as such at the date of issue.
6.3
Lost Certificates. The Board of Directors may direct a new certificate or
certificates to be issued in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the
corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed upon the making of an affidavit
of that fact by the person claiming the certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed. When
authorizing such issuance of a new certificate or certificates, the Board of Directors may,
in its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance, require the owner of such
lost, stolen or destroyed certificate or certificates, or his legal representative, to advertise
the same in such manner as it shall require and/or to give the corporation a bond in such
sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the
corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.
6.4
Transfer of Stock. Upon surrender to the corporation or the transfer agent
of the corporation of a certificate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper
evidence of succession, assignation or authority to transfer, it shall be the duty of the
corporation to issue a new certificate to the person entitled thereto, cancel the old
certificate and record the transaction upon its books.
6.5
Fixing a Record Date. In order that the corporation may determine the
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any
adjournment thereof, or to express consent to corporate action in writing without a
meeting, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment
of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or
exchange of stock or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors
may fix a record date which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days
before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any other action.
A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of
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stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the
Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.
6.6
Registered Stockholders. The corporation shall be entitled to recognize
the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive
dividends, to vote as such owner, to hold liable for calls and assessments a person
registered on its books as the owner of shares and shall not be bound to recognize any
equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other
person, whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise
provided by the laws of Delaware.
ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS
7.1
Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation, if any,
subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, may be declared by the Board
of Directors at any regular or special meeting, pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in
cash, in property or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the provisions of the
certificate of incorporation.
7.2
Reserve for Dividends. Before payment of any dividend, there may be set
aside out of any funds of the corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the
directors from time to time, in their sole discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves
to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any
property of the corporation, or for such other purposes as the directors think conducive to
the interests of the corporation, and the directors may modify or abolish any such reserve
in the manner in which it was created.
7.3
Checks. All checks or demands for money and notes of the corporation
shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of
Directors may from time to time designate.
7.4
Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution
of the Board of Directors.
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7.5
Corporate Seal. The Board of Directors may adopt a corporate seal having
inscribed thereon the name of the corporation, the year of its organization and the words
“Corporate Seal, Delaware.” The seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to
be impressed or affixed or otherwise reproduced.
7.6
Indemnification. The corporation shall, to the fullest extent authorized
under the laws of the State of Delaware, as those laws may be amended and
supplemented from time to time, indemnify any director made, or threatened to be made,
a party to an action or proceeding, whether criminal, civil, administrative or investigative,
by reason of being a director of the corporation or a predecessor corporation or, at the
corporation’s request, a director or officer of another corporation; provided, however, that
the corporation shall indemnify any such agent in connection with a proceeding initiated
by such agent only if such proceeding was authorized by the Board of Directors of the
corporation. The indemnification provided for in this Section 7.6 shall: (i) not be deemed
exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under these
bylaws, agreement or vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as
to action in their official capacities and as to action in another capacity while holding
such office, (ii) continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, and (iii) inure to
the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of a person who has ceased to be a
director. The corporation’s obligation to provide indemnification under this Section 7.6
shall be offset to the extent of any other source of indemnification or any otherwise
applicable insurance coverage under a policy maintained by the corporation or any other
person.
Expenses incurred by a director of the corporation in defending a civil or criminal
action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director of the
corporation (or was serving at the corporation’s request as a director or officer of another
corporation) shall be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such
action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director
to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is not entitled to
be indemnified by the corporation as authorized by relevant sections of the DS.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the corporation shall not be required to advance such
expenses to an agent who is a party to an action, suit or proceeding brought by the
corporation and approved by a majority of the Board of Directors of the
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corporation that alleges willful misappropriation of corporate assets by such agent,
disclosure of confidential information in violation of such agent’s fiduciary or contractual
obligations to the corporation or any other willful and deliberate breach in bad faith of
such agent’s duty to the corporation or its stockholders.
The foregoing provisions of this Section 7.6 shall be deemed to be a contract
between the corporation and each director who serves in such capacity at any time while
this bylaw is in effect, and any repeal or modification thereof shall not affect any rights or
obligations then existing with respect to any state of facts then or theretofore existing or
any action, suit or proceeding theretofore or thereafter brought based in whole or in part
upon any such state of facts.
The Board of Directors in its sole discretion shall have power on behalf of the
corporation to indemnify any person, other than a director, made a party to any action,
suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she, his testator or intestate, is or was
an officer or employee of the corporation.
To assure indemnification under this Section 7.6 of all directors, officers and
employees who are determined by the corporation or otherwise to be or to have been
“fiduciaries” of any employee benefit plan of the corporation that may exist from time to
time, the DS shall, for the purposes of this Section 7.6, be interpreted as follows: an
“other enterprise” shall be deemed to include such an employee benefit plan, including
without limitation, any plan of the corporation that is governed by the Act of Congress
entitled “Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,” as amended from time to
time; the corporation shall be deemed to have requested a person to serve the corporation
for purposes of the DS, as administrator of an employee benefit plan where the
performance by such person of his duties to the corporation also imposes duties on, or
otherwise involves services b y, such person to the plan or participants or beneficiaries of
the plan; excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan
pursuant to such Act of Congress shall be deemed “fines.”
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION GOVERNS
7.7
Conflicts with Certificate of Incorporation. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of the corporation’s certificate of
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incorporation and these bylaws, the provisions of the certificate of incorporation shall
govern.
ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS
These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, or new bylaws may be
adopted by the stockholders or by the Board of Directors, when such power is conferred
upon the Board of Directors by the certificate of incorporation at any regular meeting of
the stockholders or of the Board of Directors or at any special meeting of the
stockholders or of the Board of Directors if notice of such alteration, amendment, repeal
or adoption of new bylaws be contained in the notice of such special meeting. If the
power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws is conferred upon the Board of Directors by the
certificate of incorporation, it shall not divest or limit the power of the stockholders to
adopt, amend or repeal bylaws.
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
The undersigned, Robert Wilson, hereby certifies that he is the duly elected and
acting Secretary of DESERT GATEWAY, INC., a Delaware corporation (the
“Corporation”), and that the Bylaws attached hereto constitute the Bylaws of said
Corporation as duly adopted by Action by Written Consent in Lieu of Organizational
Meeting by the Directors on February,8 2008
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto subscribed his name this
8th Day of February, 2008.

_/s/ Robert Wilson_________
Secretary
Robert Wilson
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Desert Gateway, Inc.
I hereby consent to the incorporation on Form 10/A my report dated May 29, 2008, relating to the financial statements for the fiscal
years ended May 31, 2007 and 2006, included therein.

/s/ Michael F. Cronin
Michael F. Cronin
Certified Public Accountant
August 25, 2008
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Robert Wilson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed the attached Form 10/A.

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of Desert Gateway, Inc., as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for Desert Gateway, Inc. and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
Desert Gateway, Inc., during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of Desert Gateway, Inc. disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in Desert Gateway, Inc., internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during Desert Gateway, Inc.'s most recent fiscal year that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Desert Gateway, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.

I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to Desert Gateway, Inc.’s independent registered public accounting firm and the audit
committee of Desert Gateway, Inc.’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Desert Gateway,
Inc.'s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
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(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in Desert Gateway, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 25, 2008

2

/s/ Robert Wilson
Robert Wilson
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Robert Wilson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed the attached Form 10/A.

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of Desert Gateway, Inc., as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for Desert Gateway, Inc. and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
Desert Gateway, Inc., during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of Desert Gateway, Inc. disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in Desert Gateway, Inc., internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during Desert Gateway, Inc.'s most recent fiscal year that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Desert Gateway, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.

I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to Desert Gateway, Inc.’s independent registered public accounting firm and the audit
committee of Desert Gateway, Inc.’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Desert Gateway,
Inc.'s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
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(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in Desert Gateway, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 25, 2008

2

/s/ Robert Wilson
Robert Wilson
President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Report of Desert Gateway, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form 10/A as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”) I, Robert Wilson, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to the best of my knowledge:
1. The Report on Form 10, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.
/s/ Robert Wilson
Robert Wilson, Sole Director,
President, CEO, CFO
August 25, 2008

